Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.
Form N-CSRS

August 24, 2016
Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM N-CSR

CERTIFIED SHAREHOLDER REPORT OF REGISTERED
MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT COMPANIES

Investment Company Act file number 811-22369

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in charter)

620 Eighth Avenue, 49t Floor, New York, NY 10018

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Table of Contents



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS
Robert 1. Frenkel, Esq.

Legg Mason & Co., LLC
100 First Stamford Place
Stamford, CT 06902

(Name and address of agent for service)

Registrant s telephone number, including area code: (888)777-0102
Date of fiscal year end: December 31

Date of reporting period: June 30, 2016

Table of Contents



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Table of Conten

ITEM 1. REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS.
The Semi-Annual Report to Stockholders is filed herewith.
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Fund objectives

The Fund s primary investment objective is to provide current income. As a secondary investment objective, the Fund will seek capital
appreciation.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objectives by investing primarily in a diverse portfolio of mortgage-backed securities, consisting
primarily of non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities and commercial mortgage-backed securities.

Letter from the chairman

Dear Shareholder,

We are pleased to provide the semi-annual report of Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. for the six-month reporting period
ended June 30, 2016. Please read on for Fund performance information and a detailed look at prevailing economic and market conditions during
the Fund s reporting period.

As always, we remain committed to providing you with excellent service and a full spectrum of investment choices. We also remain committed
to supplementing the support you receive from your financial advisor. One way we accomplish this is through our website, www.lmcef.com.
Here you can gain immediate access to market and investment information, including:

Fund prices and performance,

Market insights and commentaries from our portfolio managers, and

A host of educational resources.
We look forward to helping you meet your financial goals.
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Sincerely,

Jane Trust, CFA
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

July 29, 2016

I Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.
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Investment commentary

Economic review

The pace of U.S. economic activity fluctuated during the six months ended June 30, 2016 (the reporting period ). Looking back, the U.S.
Department of Commerce s revised figures showed that fourth quarter 2015 U.S. gross domestic product ( GDRrgwth was 0.9%. First quarter
2016 GDP growth then decelerated to 0.8%. The U.S. Department of Commerce s initial reading for second quarter 2016 GDP growth released
after the reporting period ended was 1.2%. The improvement in GDP growth in the second quarter reflected an acceleration in personal
consumption expenditures ( PCE ), an upturn in exports and smaller decreases in nonresidential fixed investment and in federal government
spending.

While there was a pocket of weakness in May 2016, job growth in the U.S. was solid overall and a tailwind for the economy during the reporting
period. When the period ended in June 2016, unemployment was 4.9%, as reported by the U.S. Department of Labor. The percentage of
longer-term unemployed also declined over the period. In June 2016, 25.8% of Americans looking for a job had been out of work for more than
six months, versus 26.9% when the period began.

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. I

Table of Contents 7



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Table of Conten

Investment commentary (cont d)

Market review
Q. How did the Federal Reserve Board (the Fed nespond to the economic environment?

A. Looking back, after an extended period of maintaining the federal funds rate' at a historically low range between zero and 0.25%, the Fed
increased the rate at its meeting on December 16, 2015. This marked the first rate hike since 2006. In particular, the U.S. central bank raised the
federal funds rate to a range between 0.25% and 0.50%. In its official statement after the December 2015 meeting, the Fed said, The stance of
monetary policy remains accommodative after this increase, thereby supporting further improvement in labor market conditions and a return to 2
percent inflation .The Committee expects that economic conditions will evolve in a manner that will warrant only gradual increases in the federal
funds rate; the federal funds rate is likely to remain, for some time, below levels that are expected to prevail in the longer run. At its meetings
that concluded on January 27, 2016, March 16, 2016, April 27, 2016, June 15, 2016 and July 27, 2016 (after the reporting period ended), the Fed
kept rates on hold.

Q. Did Treasury yields trend higher or lower during the six months ended June 30, 2016?

A. Both short- and long-term Treasury yields moved sharply lower during the six months ended June 30, 2016. Two-year Treasury yields fell
from a peak of 1.06% at the beginning of the period to a low of 0.58% at the end of the period. Ten-year Treasury yields began the reporting
period at a peak of 2.27% and ended the period at 1.49%. Their low of 1.46% occurred on June 27 and June 28, 2016.

Q. What factors impacted the spread sectors (non-Treasuries) during the reporting period?

A. The spread sectors generally posted positive results during the reporting period. Performance fluctuated with investor sentiment given signs
of moderating global growth, shifting expectations for future Fed monetary policy, the U.K. referendum to leave the European Union ( Brexit )
and several geopolitical issues. The broad U.S. bond market, as measured by the Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index", gained 5.31% during the six
months ended June 30, 2016. Higher risk segments of the market generated the best returns during the reporting period.

Q. How did the commercial mortgage-backed securities ( CMBS ) and residential mortgage-backed securities ( RMBS ) perform during
the reporting period?

A. Both CMBS and RMBS generated positive results during the six months ended June 30, 2016. Demand was solid overall as investors looked
to generate incremental yield in the low interest rate environment. Over the six-month reporting period, CMBS, as measured by the Barclays
CMBS Index", gained 5.92%. RMBS, as measured by the Barclays U.S. Mortgage-Backed Securities Index"!, returned 3.10% over the

same period.

Performance review

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. returned -0.28% based on its net asset value
( NAViinnd 4.43% based on its New York Stock Exchange ( NYSE ) market price per share. The Fund s unmanaged benchmark, the BofA
Merrill Lynch U.S. Floating Rate Home Equity Loan

v Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.
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Asset Backed Securities Index ", returned -0.22% for the same period. The Lipper U.S. Mortgage Closed-End Funds Category Average™
returned 2.08% over the same time frame. Please note that Lipper performance returns are based on each fund s NAV.

During this six-month period, the Fund made distributions to shareholders totaling $1.36 per share. As of June 30, 2016, the Fund estimates that
all of the distributions were sourced from net investment income.* The performance table shows the Fund s six-month total return based on its
NAYV and market price as of June 30, 2016. Past performance is no guarantee of future results.

Performance Snapshot as of June 30, 2016

(unaudited)

6-Month
Price Per Share Total Return**
$21.33 (NAV) -0.28%
$23.12 (Market Price) 4.43%

All figures represent past performance and are not a guarantee of future results. Performance figures for periods shorter than one year
represent cumulative figures and are not annualized.

*% Total returns are based on changes in NAV or market price, respectively. Returns reflect the deduction of all Fund expenses,
including management fees, operating expenses, and other Fund expenses. Returns do not reflect the deduction of brokerage
commissions or taxes that investors may pay on distributions or the sale of shares.

Total return assumes the reinvestment of all distributions, including returns of capital, if any, at NAV.

Total return assumes the reinvestment of all distributions, including returns of capital, if any, in additional shares in accordance with
the Fund s Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

Looking for additional information?

The Fund is traded under the symbol DMO and its closing market price is available in most newspapers under the NYSE listings. The daily
NAV is available on-line under the symbol XDMOX on most financial websites. Barron s and the Wall Street Journal s Monday edition both
carry closed-end fund tables that provide additional information. In addition, the Fund issues a quarterly press release that can be found on most
major financial websites as well as www.Ilmcef.com (click on the name of the Fund).

In a continuing effort to provide information concerning the Fund, shareholders may call 1-888-777-0102 (toll free), Monday through Friday
from 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Eastern Time, for the Fund s current NAV, market price and other information.

Thank you for your investment in Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. As always, we appreciate that you have chosen us to
manage your assets and we remain focused on achieving the Fund s investment goals.

*This estimate is not for tax purposes. The Fund will issue a Form 1099 with final composition of the distributions for tax purposes after year-end. A return of
capital is not taxable and results in a reduction in the tax basis of a shareholder s investment. For more information about a distribution s composition, please refer
to the Fund s distribution press release or, if applicable, the Section 19 notice located in the press release section of our website, www.Imcef.com (click on the
name of the Fund).

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. \%
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Investment commentary (cont d)

Sincerely,

Jane Trust, CFA
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
July 29, 2016

RISKS: The Fund s investments are subject to liquidity risk, credit risk, inflation risk and interest rate risk. As interest rates rise, bond prices
fall, reducing the value of the Fund s fixed-income holdings. The Fund may invest in lower-rated high-yield bonds (commonly known as  junk
bonds ), which are subject to greater credit risk (risk of default) than higher-rated obligations. Mortgage-backed securities are subject to
additional risks, including prepayment risk, which can limit the potential gains in a declining interest rate environment. The Fund may invest in
securities backed by subprime or distressed mortgages which involve a higher degree of risk and chance of loss. Leverage may result in greater
volatility of NAV and the market price of common shares and increases a shareholder s risk of loss. The Fund may make significant investments
in derivative instruments. Derivative instruments can be illiquid, may disproportionately increase losses, and have a potentially large impact on
Fund performance. The Fund is not guaranteed by the U.S. government, the U.S. Treasury or any government agency.

All investments are subject to risk including the possible loss of principal. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. All index
performance reflects no deduction for fees, expenses or taxes. Please note that an investor cannot invest directly in an index.

The information provided is not intended to be a forecast of future events, a guarantee of future results or investment advice. Views expressed
may differ from those of the firm as a whole.

VI Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.
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i Gross domestic product ( GDP ) is the market value of all final goods and services produced within a country in a given period of time.

i The Federal Reserve Board (the Fed ) is responsible for the formulation of U.S. policies designed to promote economic growth, full employment, stable prices
and a sustainable pattern of international trade and payments.

i The federal funds rate is the rate charged by one depository institution on an overnight sale of immediately available funds (balances at the Fed) to another
depository institution; the rate may vary from depository institution to depository institution and from day to day.

iv. The Barclays U.S. Aggregate Index is a broad-based bond index comprised of government, corporate, mortgage- and asset-backed issues, rated investment
grade or higher, and having at least one year to maturity.

v The Barclays CMBS Index measures the performance of the commercial mortgage-backed securities market.

Vi The Barclays U.S. Mortgage-Backed Securities Index is an unmanaged index composed of agency mortgage-backed pass-through securities, both fixed-rate and

hybrid adjustable rate mortgages, issued by the Government National Mortgage Association, Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation.

vii Net asset value ( NAV ) is calculated by subtracting total liabilities, including liabilities associated with financial leverage (if any), from the closing value of all
securities held by the Fund (plus all other assets) and dividing the result (total net assets) by the total number of the common shares outstanding. The NAV
fluctuates with changes in the market prices of securities in which the Fund has invested. However, the price at which an investor may buy or sell shares of the
Fund is the Fund s market price as determined by supply of and demand for the Fund s shares.

viii. The BofA Merrill Lynch U.S. Floating Rate Home Equity Loan Asset Backed Securities Index tracks the performance of U.S. dollar-denominated investment
grade floating-rate asset-backed securities collateralized by home equity loans publicly issued in the U.S. domestic market. Qualifying securities must have an

investment grade rating, at least one year remaining to final stated maturity, a floating-rate coupon, and an original deal size for the collateral group of at least
$250 million.

ix Lipper, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Reuters, provides independent insight on global collective investments. Returns are based on the six-month period
ended June 30, 2016, including the reinvestment of all distributions, including returns of capital, if any, calculated among the 8 funds in the Fund s Lipper
category.

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. VII
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Fund at a glance (unaudited)

Investment breakdown (%) as a percent of total investments

The bar graph above represents the composition of the Fund s investments as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 and does not include derivatives, such as
futures contracts, swap contracts and forward foreign currency contracts. The Fund is actively managed. As a result, the composition of the Fund s investments is
subject to change at any time.

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. 2016 Semi-Annual Report 1
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Spread duration (unaudited)

Economic exposure June 30, 2016

Total Spread Duration

DMO 4.37 years

Benchmark 3.53 years

Spread duration measures the sensitivity to changes in spreads. The spread over Treasuries is the annual risk-premium demanded by investors to
hold non-Treasury securities. Spread duration is quantified as the % change in price resulting from a 100 basis points change in spreads. For a
security with positive spread duration, an increase in spreads would result in a price decline and a decline in spreads would result in a price
increase. This chart highlights the market sector exposure of the Fund s sectors relative to the selected benchmark sectors as of the end of the
reporting period.

ABS Asset-Backed Securities

Benchmark BofA Merrill Lynch U.S. Floating Rate Home Equity Loan Asset Backed Securities Index
DMO Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.

EM Emerging Markets

HY High Yield

MBS Mortgage-Backed Securities

2 Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. 2016 Semi-Annual Report
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Effective duration (unaudited)

Interest rate exposure June 30, 2016

Total Effective Duration

DMO 3.20 years

Benchmark 0.04 years

Effective duration measures the sensitivity to changes in relevant interest rates. Effective duration is quantified as the % change in price resulting
from a 100 basis points change in interest rates. For a security with positive effective duration, an increase in interest rates would result in a price
decline and a decline in interest rates would result in a price increase. This chart highlights the interest rate exposure of the Fund s sectors relative
to the selected benchmark sectors as of the end of the reporting period.

ABS Asset-Backed Securities

Benchmark BofA Merrill Lynch U.S. Floating Rate Home Equity Loan Asset Backed Securities Index
DMO Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.

EM Emerging Markets

HY High Yield

MBS Mortgage-Backed Securities

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. 2016 Semi-Annual Report 3
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Schedule of investments (unaudited)

June 30, 2016

Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc.

Maturity Face
Security Rate Date Amount Value
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities 91.9%
ABFS Mortgage Loan Trust, 2002-3 M1 5.902% 9/15/33 1,173,600 $ 921,574 @
Accredited Mortgage Loan Trust, 2003-3 Al 5.210% 1/25/34 1,012,504 989,593 (@)
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Trust, 2005-05 1A1 2.903% 9/25/35 268,580 206,769 @)
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Trust, 2005-07 2A21 2.955% 10/25/35 889,793 805,833 (a)b)
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Trust, 2005-10 1A21 2.956% 1/25/36 311,458 268,829 (@)(b)
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Trust, 2005-12 5A1 0.953% 3/25/36 377,137 220,589 (@)(b)
AFC Home Equity Loan Trust, 2003-3 1A 1.203% 10/25/30 1,580,274 1,366,319 ((®)(©)
American Home Mortgage Assets, 2005-2 2A1A 2.976% 1/25/36 1,350,395 938,630 @(b)
American Home Mortgage Assets, 2006-4 1A12 0.663% 10/25/46 2,404,937 1,602,730 @(b)
American Home Mortgage Investment Trust, 2005-SD1 1A1 0.903% 9/25/35 275,513 212,775 @(b)e)
American Home Mortgage Investment Trust, 2007-2 2A 0.846% 3/25/47 12,967,398 1,363,240 ®
American Home Mortgage Investment Trust, 2007-A 4A 1.346% 7/25/46 2,262,124 778,865 @(b)c)
Ameriquest Mortgage Securities Inc., 2002-4 M3 5.703% 2/25/33 1,736,802 1,440,830 @(b)
Argent Securities Inc., 2005-W5 A2D 0.773% 1/25/36 4,122,727 3,084,368 ()(®)
Argent Securities Inc., 2006-M2 A2C 0.603% 9/25/36 2,428,889 919,112 ®
Argent Securities Inc., 2006-M2 A2D 0.693% 9/25/36 641,056 245,196 ®)
Argent Securities Inc., 2006-M3 A2C 0.613% 10/25/36 3,952,768 1,715,938 ®
Banc of America Alternative Loan Trust, 2005-9 1CB5, 10 4.647% 10/25/35 5,363,749 856,501 @(b)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2004-B 6A1 2.082% 12/20/34 458,744 315,185 @)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2004-C 3A1 3.106% 12/20/34 657,096 609,793 (@)(b)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2006-D 2A1 3.447% 5/20/36 65,017 58,035 @)(®)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2006-D 6A1 3.038% 5/20/36 1,331,892 1,117,869 (@)®)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2006-F 1A1 3.070% 7/20/36 509,408 495,694 (2)(b)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2006-H 3A1 2.789% 9/20/46 126,348 101,050 @)(b)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2014-R5 1A2 2.458% 9/26/45 3,750,000 2,520,701 @(®)©)
Banc of America Funding Corp., 2014-R7 3A2 2.855% 3/26/36 5,372,814

Item 2. Properties

We have a 10-year lease expiring in 2014, with two five-year renewal options, for approximately 111,000 square feet
of manufacturing, laboratory and office space at 200 Lawrence Drive in West Chester, Pennsylvania. We believe that
our facility will be sufficient for the foreseeable future.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are not currently subject to any material pending, or to our knowledge, threatened legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

We had our initial public offering on May 20, 2004. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market

under the symbol PUMP. On March 24, 2005, there were 149 registered stockholders of our common stock. Below is

a summary of the high and low prices of our stock for each quarterly period since the date of our initial public offering

as reported on the NASDAQ National Market. On March 24, 2005, the last sales price of our common stock was

$20.88.

Period

2004 High Low
Second quarter (since May 20, 2004) $21.50 $16.65
Third quarter $19.84 $12.08
Fourth quarter $17.00 $13.36

Since our incorporation, we have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently expect
to retain future earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

On May 19, 2004, the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1 covering the offering of 4,250,000 shares of the
Company s common stock, Commission file number 333-113008 was declared effective (the Registration Statement ).
The offering closed on May 25, 2004 and did not terminate before any securities were sold. As of the date of the filing

of this report, the offering has terminated. The offering was managed by Piper Jaffray & Co., J.P. Morgan Securities

Inc. and Thomas Weisel Partners LLC as representatives of the several underwriters named in the Registration

Statement (the Underwriters ).

The Underwriters exercised an over-allotment option to purchase an additional 637,500 shares of the Company s
common stock. The total price to the public for the shares offered and sold by the Company, including the
over-allotment, was $73,312,500.

The amount of expenses incurred for the Company s account in connection with the offering is as follows:
Underwriting discounts and commissions $5,131,875
Finders fees

Expenses paid to or for the Underwriters

Other expenses 2,435,264
Total expenses $7,567,139
All of the foregoing expenses were direct or indirect payments to persons other than (i) directors, officers or their
associates; (ii) persons owning ten percent (10%) or more of the Company s common stock; or (iii) affiliates of the

Company

The net proceeds of the offering, including the exercise of the over-allotment option, to the Company (after deducting
the foregoing expenses) were $65,745,361. From the effective date of the Registration Statement, the net proceeds
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have been used for the following purposes:

Acquisition of Debiotech Technology
Repayment of indebtedness

Working capital

Cash equivalents

$12,241,076
4,767,234
19,015,099
29,721,952

$65,745,361

All of the foregoing payments were direct or indirect payments to persons other than (i) directors, officers or their
associates; (ii) persons owning ten percent (10%) or more of the Company s common stock; or (iii) affiliates of the

Company.

There has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds from our initial public offering as described in our
final prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b).

22
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Unregistered Securities

In October 2004, we issued 400,000 restricted shares of our common stock (the Shares ) at $14.45 per share, pursuant
to a Subscription Agreement, in connection with the acquisition of certain technology and intellectual property from
Debiotech. These shares were valued at $5.8 million. The issuance and sale of the Shares to Debiotech were exempt
from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, because the issuance and sale did not
involve any public offering. Under the Subscription Agreement, we also granted Debiotech certain piggyback
registration rights which permit Debiotech to include the Shares on a registration statement to the extent we permit
other holders of our common stock without contractual registration rights to participate in the same registration.

The information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference to the
information set forth in Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

23
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and
consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 have been derived from our audited consolidated
financial statements and the related notes, which are included elsewhere in this report. The following consolidated
statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the consolidated balance sheet data
as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements, which
do not appear in this report. Certain amounts in the prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation. You should read this information in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes
included elsewhere in this report.

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands, except share and per share
data)
Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues $ 67,926 $ 34,120 $ 23,598 $ 10,040 $ 1,821
Operating expenses:
Cost of products sold 26,986 16,759 12,384 8,578 1,983
Research and development expenses 6,301 5,173 3,921 2,492 2,737
Selling, general and administrative
expenses 36,793 29,800 26,741 17,638 7,804
Purchased in-process research and
development 14,521
Total operating expenses 84,601 51,732 43,046 28,708 12,524
Loss from operations (16,675) (17,612) (19,448) (18,668) (10,703)
Interest income 361 22 158 294 204
Interest expense (348) (214) (84) (127) (153)
Net loss (16,662) (17,804) (19,374) (18,501) (10,652)
Deemed dividend beneficial
conversion feature of preferred stock (7,878)()
Net loss attributable to common
stockholders $§ (16,662) $ (25,682) $ (19374 $ (18,501) $ (10,652)
Basic and diluted net loss
attributable to common stockholders
per share $ (1.23) $ (6.64) $ (5.02) $ 4.80) $ (2.88)
Weighted average shares basic and
diluted 13,521,644 3,869,844 3,861,614 3,856,649 3,700,197
As of December 31,
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2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $30,867 $ 384 $ 1,134 $ 16,607 $ 432
Working capital 56,646 4,164 5,312 17,223 (639)
Total assets 75,985 23,243 15,318 23911 4,667
Long-term debt, net of current portion 254 467 852 178 281
Stockholders equity 65,006 7,303 7,462 19,346 397

(In connection with the issuances of preferred stock in 2003, we recorded a non-cash charge that represented the
deemed dividend relating to the intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature of the preferred stock. See Note 9
to our consolidated financial statements.

24
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included
elsewhere in this report. This discussion may contain forward-looking statements based upon current expectations
that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements for many reasons, including those set forth under Risk Factors and elsewhere in this
report. Certain amounts in the prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Overview

We design, develop, manufacture, and sell external insulin pumps for people with diabetes. We introduced our first
generation pump in July 2000. We began shipping our third generation pump, the IR 1200, in April 2004 and in
February 2005 began shipping the IR 1250. We also provide ancillary supplies necessary for pump therapy, including
insulin cartridges, infusion sets, batteries, and various accessories.

Our approximately 55 person direct sales force promotes our pump in the United States to healthcare professionals
and patients. In addition, our approximately 70 diabetes educators, or clinical managers, train and provide clinical
support to patients in the United States. We also use domestic and international distributors to market, sell, and service
our products.

Recent Developments

In May 2004, we completed our initial public offering ( IPO ) in which we sold 4,887,500 shares of our common stock
at $15 per share. Net proceeds were approximately $65.7 million. As of the closing date of the offering, all of the
convertible preferred stock previously outstanding was converted into 9,522,604 shares of common stock. A summary
of the terms of this offering can be found in the Registration Statement on Form S-1 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (Commission file number 333-113008).

In October 2004, we entered into license and development agreements with Debiotech for certain technology and
intellectual property. We acquired the exclusive worldwide license to make, use, and sell products utilizing the
intellectual property portfolio owned by Debiotech relating to micro-pumps and micro-needles for use related to
insulin administration and in-vivo glucose sensing. We paid $12.0 million in cash and issued 400,000 restricted shares
of our common stock for a total of $18.0 million; of which $14.5 million was charged to expense as purchased
in-process research and development. The remaining $3.5 million has been classified as non current asset as a prepaid
asset.

In December 2004, we announced that we had entered into a definitive agreement to acquire certain assets of Cygnus
for $10.0 million in cash. The assets include substantially all of Cygnus intellectual property rights, fixed assets,
supplier, manufacturing and license agreements, inventory and tangible personal property. On March 23, 2005, the
stockholders of Cygnus, Inc. approved the transaction and the transaction was consummated. This transaction will be
accounted as a purchase of assets and in-process research and development technology as the acquired assets do not
constitute a business.

In December 2004, we received 510(k) clearance from the Food and Drug Administration to market the IR 1250

pump. The IR 1250 utilizes the IR 1200 platform but includes additional software which incorporates a food database
of up to 500 items and tunes for alerts. We started shipping the IR 1250 in February 2005.
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Financial Operations Overview

Net Revenues. We generate revenues primarily from the sale of our external insulin pumps and ancillary supplies,
including insulin cartridges and infusion sets. In the year ended December 31, 2004, approximately 82% our products
were sold directly to patients. We invoice patients either directly or through their healthcare payors, such as insurance
companies and health maintenance organizations. Levels of reimbursement from healthcare payors vary depending
upon the specific benefits provided under each patient s coverage. Net revenues for a particular product are the
difference between the established billing rate for such product and the contractual allowance given to the healthcare

payor.

Pump Upgrade Program. During the period November 1, 2003 to March 31, 2004 (the Period ), we implemented a
program that allowed patients in the United States, at their option and at no additional cost, to upgrade their IR 1000
pump purchased during the Period to the IR 1200 pump when it became available.
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In anticipation of the shipment of the IR 1200 in April 2004, we stopped domestic shipments of the IR 1000 for the
last three weeks of March 2004. We began shipping the IR 1200 pump in April 2004. As of September 30, 2004, all
obligations to ship upgrade pumps under this program were completed. At this time, we do not anticipate the need for
additional product upgrade programs, of this nature, in the foreseeable future.

In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, we deferred the recognition of all net revenues for
IR 1000 pumps shipped under the upgrade program. We did not recognize the net revenue on an IR 1000 pump
shipped under this program until either the IR 1200 replacement pump was shipped to the patient requesting an
upgrade or the patient declined the upgrade. All IR 1000 pumps shipped to new patients domestically between
November 1, 2003 and March 31, 2004 were subject to this upgrade program. We also deferred the associated cost of
products sold on shipments of pumps under the upgrade program. Net revenues were recognized when we shipped the
IR 1200 pump to the patient or when the patient declined to be part of the upgrade program. The deferred cost
represented the estimated recoverable inventory costs of the IR 1000 pumps when they were returned to us. When we
shipped an IR 1200 as a replacement pump, we recorded the cost of the IR 1200 pump as cost of products sold at that
time.

As a result of this program, our net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased by the recognition of net
revenues deferred from the previous year. The amount of deferred revenue recognized in 2004 was $4.7 million.

Cost of Products Sold. Cost of products sold include material costs, other direct and indirect manufacturing costs,
shipping and handling costs, and product warranty expense. We purchase components and raw materials from third
party vendors and assemble them into insulin pumps at our manufacturing facility in southeastern Pennsylvania.
Insulin cartridges and certain other supplies are manufactured for us in Asia and Europe, as well as in the United
States under agreements with third party suppliers. All purchases sourced from vendors or suppliers outside the United
States are invoiced in U.S. dollars.

Direct and indirect manufacturing costs include material costs, labor costs, electricity and other utilities, maintenance
expenses, depreciation and other fixed and variable costs required to operate our plant. Since the commercial
introduction of our first pump in July 2000, the average unit cost of our pump has declined due to improved
manufacturing efficiencies and increased absorption of fixed and semi-fixed overhead costs.

Like most of our competitors, we offer a four-year warranty on our pumps. Warranty expense is recorded in the period
that product shipment occurs. The expense is based on historical experience and projected trends of warranty claims
and the estimated cost to settle the claims.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses include costs associated with the design,
development and testing of new and existing products. Such costs are charged to expense as incurred and include
salaries and related personnel costs, fees paid to outside consultants, and other direct and indirect costs related to
research and product development.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses include salaries,
commissions and related personnel expenses for employees in sales, marketing, clinical, patient service and
administrative functions, as well as overhead costs associated with these activities. Also included are costs associated
with promotional literature and videos, trade show participation, education and training and the cost of providing
demo pumps and supplies, which are charged to expense as incurred.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
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The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The
preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in
our accompanying consolidated financial statements. The critical accounting policies described below are those which
we believe require estimates based on assumptions that are uncertain at the time the estimates are made, and for which
different accounting estimates that management could have reasonably used would have had a material impact on
reported financial information. Management has discussed the development and selection of our critical accounting
estimates and related disclosures with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.
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Revenue Recognition. Revenues are generated primarily from the sale of insulin pumps and ancillary supplies.
Customers do not have any right of return or any right to cancel or terminate the sale once the pumps or ancillary
supplies are shipped. Pump and ancillary supplies net revenues are recognized upon shipment in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104 ( SAB 104 ). In accordance with EITF 00-21, Accounting for Revenue Arrangements
with Multiple Deliverables ( EITF 00-21 ), in instances where we provide pump operation training, we defer the fair
value of the pump operation training until the training is delivered. We base the fair value of pump operation training
on the historical amount we have paid to independent service providers for training patients on the operation of our
pumps. Though the insulin pump has standalone value, there is no objective evidence as to the pump s fair value since
we are reimbursed the same amount with or without pump operation training. As a result, the residual method under
EITF 00-21 is utilized.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, approximately 82% of our products were sold directly to patients. We bill
these patients directly or bill their healthcare payors. Levels of reimbursements from third party payors vary
depending upon the specific benefits provided under each patient s coverage. At the time of sale, we record revenues
net of third party contractual allowances, which represent the difference between the established billing rate and third
party payor payments.

Net revenues for products sold directly to distributors are recognized upon shipment. Distributors have no right of
return, and we have no post-shipment obligations.

Accounts Receivable/Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. In estimating the collectability of our accounts receivable,
we analyze historical bad debts, payor concentrations, payor and patient credit-worthiness, current economic trends,
and changes in patient and/or payor payment terms. These allowances are recorded in the period when the net
revenues are recognized based on anticipated future events. If there are unanticipated future events, this allowance
may need to be adjusted.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method for all inventories. Costs for pumps include material, labor, and manufacturing overhead. Ancillary supplies
inventory and raw materials inventory include material costs only. We review our inventory balances monthly for
obsolete inventory. We manage the risk of inventory obsolescence through validating product designs prior to product
introduction, as well as through planning of inventory with respect to anticipated design changes. Once inventory is
determined to be obsolete, the inventory is charged to cost of products sold, removed from our stockroom, and either
scrapped or used for non-inventory purposes.

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance. Our estimate for the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets requires us
to make significant estimates and judgments about our future operating results. Our ability to realize the deferred tax
assets depends on our future taxable income as well as limitations on their utilization. A deferred tax asset must be
reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not
be realized prior to its expiration. The projections of our operating results on which the establishment of a valuation
allowance is based involve significant estimates regarding future demand for our products, competitive conditions,
product development efforts, approvals of regulatory agencies and product cost. If actual results differ from these
projections, or if our expectations of future results change, it may be necessary to adjust the valuation allowance. As a
result of the historic losses, the Company has provided a full valuation allowance for the deferred tax assets.

Warranty Liability. Each of our insulin pumps is sold with a four-year warranty. Our warranty liability represents the
total estimated cost for expected future warranty claims related to all products shipped. Warranty expense is accrued
in the period that the products are shipped and is based on historical experience, projected trends of warranty claims,
and the expected costs to settle the claims. As changes occur in expected warranty claim rates and the estimated cost
to settle claims, the warranty liability is adjusted accordingly.
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Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Results of Operations. The following tables set forth, for the years indicated, certain operational information. A
percentage breakdown of net revenues is presented for certain operational items. The breakdown of cost of products
sold and gross margin is presented as a percentage of these respective items.

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 Change, 2004/2003
$ % $ % $ %
(in thousands)
Consolidated Statements of

Operations

Net revenues $ 67,926 100.0% $ 34,120 100.0%  $33,806 99.1%
Operating expenses:

Cost of products sold 26,986 39.7 16,759 49.1 10,227 61.0
Research and development expenses 6,301 9.3 5,173 15.2 1,128 21.8
Selling, general and administrative

expenses 36,793 54.2 29,800 87.3 6,993 23.5
Purchased in-process research and

development 14,521 21.3 14,521

Total operating expenses 84,601 124.5 51,732 151.6 32,869 63.5
Loss from operations (16,675) (24.5) (17,612) (51.6) 937 53
Interest income 361 0.5 22 0.1 339 1,540.9
Interest expense (348) 0.5 (214) (0.7) (134) (62.6)
Net loss (16,662) (24.5) (17,804) (52.2) 1,142 6.4
Deemed dividend (7,878) (23.1) 7,878 100.0

Net loss attributable to common
stockholders $(16,662) 24.5)% $(25,682) (75.3)% $ 9,020 35.1%

Years Ended December 31,
Change,
2004 2003 2004/2003
$ % $ % $ %
(in thousands)
Net Revenues, Cost of Products Sold
and Gross Margin
Net revenues (dollars and as a percent
of total)
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Insulin pumps $47,178 69.5% $21,176 62.1% $26,002 122.8%

Ancillary supplies 20,748 30.5 12,944 37.9 7,804 60.3

Total $67,926 100.0%  $34,120 100.0% $33,806 99.1%

Cost of products sold (dollars and as a

percent of total)

Insulin pumps $ 14,639 542% $ 8,462 50.5% $ 6,177 73.0%

Ancillary supplies 12,347 45.8 8,297 49.5 4,050 48.8

Total $26,986 100.0% $16,759 100.0%  $10,227 61.0%

Gross margin (dollars and as a percent

of total)

Insulin pumps $32,539 79.5% $12,714 73.2% $19,825 155.9%

Ancillary supplies 8,401 20.5 4,647 26.8 3,754 80.8

Total $ 40,940 100.0% $17,361 100.0%  $23,579 135.8%
28
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Years Ended December

31,
2004 2003
Gross margin % (as a percent of net revenues)
Insulin pumps 69.0% 60.0%
Ancillary supplies 40.5% 35.9%
Total 60.3% 50.9%

Net Revenues. In 2004, net revenues were $67.9 million, compared to $34.1 million in 2003. Of the increase in net
revenues, $21.3 million was primarily from increased demand for pumps, $7.8 million from increased shipments of
ancillary supplies and $4.7 million from the recognition of revenue deferred in prior periods associated with the pump
upgrade program. Net revenues from domestic and foreign sales were $63.0 million and $4.9 million, respectively, in
2004 and $31.7 million and $2.4 million, respectively, in 2003. Pump net revenues increased by $26.0 million
primarily due to increases in unit shipments due to the continued strong demand for the IR 1200 and the positive
international launch of the IR 1200, particularly in Germany, France and Canada. Our average selling price of pumps
remained relatively stable over this period.

Net revenues from ancillary supplies, consisting of infusion sets, pump cartridges and other ancillary supplies
increased by 60.3% in 2004 versus the comparable period of 2003. The increase was due to increased unit sales, while
prices remained near prior period levels. The growth also reflected our growth in the number of patients using our
pumps in 2004 and our retention of patients from prior years.

We anticipate net revenues for pumps and ancillary supplies to continue to increase in 2005 as we further expand
internationally and grow the ancillary supplies market.

Cost of Products Sold. Cost of products sold increased by $10.2 million, or 61.0%, to $27.0 million in 2004 from
$16.8 million in 2003 primarily due to the increase in net revenues in 2004. However, as a percentage of net revenues,
cost of products sold decreased to 39.7% in 2004 from 49.1% in 2003. Primary factors that contributed to the decrease
included better absorption of manufacturing overhead costs associated with increased production volumes, improved
purchasing efficiencies for supplies and pump materials, and improvement in labor and manufacturing efficiency.
Cost of insulin pumps sold increased by $6.2 million, or 73.0% in 2004 as compared to 2003. The rate of this increase
was lower than the rate of increase of pump sales due to the economies and efficiencies described above, which offset
the additional costs associated with the production ramp-up of the IR 1200 incurred during the third quarter of 2004
and the $1.0 million of additional costs associated with the additional pumps shipped under the pump upgrade
program.

Gross Margin. Gross margin increased to 60.3% in 2004 from 50.9% in 2003. Gross margin for pumps increased to
69.0% in 2004 from 60.0% in 2003 due to better absorption of overhead associated with increased sales volume and
lower cost of raw materials. The pump upgrade program had a slightly positive impact on the gross margin for pumps
in 2004. Ancillary supplies gross margin increased to 40.5% in 2004 from 35.9% in 2003. Gross margin improvement
for ancillary supplies was due to lower cost sources of supply.

It is anticipated that the gross margin and gross margin percentage will continue to improve in 2005. Reasons for this
improvement include the introduction of our ezSet infusion system further reductions of the costs of our existing
disposables, and increased absorption of manufacturing overheads.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses increased $1.1 million, or 21.8%, to $6.3 million in

2004 from $5.2 million in 2003 reflecting increased spending on activities to improve existing products and develop
new products. As a percentage of net revenues, research and development expenses decreased to 9.3% in 2004 from
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15.2% in 2003.

Although we anticipate a similar increase in research and development costs in 2005 from 2004 as compared to the
increase in 2004 from 2003, we also anticipate a decrease in these costs as the percentage of net revenues. In 2005, we
expect approximately 80% of our research and development budget to be allocated to the development of next
generation pumps and ancillary supplies. We expect future net revenues from these products to supplant net revenues
from existing products. The remaining approximately 20% of our research and development budget in 2005 is
allocated towards development of long-term products, including micro-needles and continuous glucose sensors.

Selling, General and Administrative ( SG&A ) Expenses. SG&A expenses increased by $7.0 million, or 23.5%, to
$36.8 million in 2004 from $29.8 million in 2003. However, as a percentage of net revenues, SG&A expenses

decreased to 54.2% in 2004 from 87.3% in 2003.
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Of the increase, $3.4 million was primarily related to higher costs principally associated with increased headcount in
the sales, clinical, and marketing functions supporting increased selling activity for existing pumps and ancillary
supplies, as well as the launch of the IR 1200 and IR 1250. In addition, higher insurance costs of $1.2 million,
administrative personnel costs of $575,000, professional fees of $409,000, depreciation expense of $290,000, and rent
expense of $257,000 contributed to higher SG&A costs in 2004. The remaining increase is primarily attributable to
increased marketing and promotional expenses and general and administrative expenses associated with operating as a
public company.

We expect SG&A expenses to increase in absolute dollars in 2005 from 2004 as we expand our sales, clinical, and
marketing efforts to support our growing business. However, we expect that SG&A expenses should continue to
decline as a percent of net revenues as we continue to leverage our existing SG&A infrastructure.

Purchased in-process research and development. In October 2004, we entered into license and development
agreements with Debiotech for certain technology and intellectual property. We paid $12.0 million in cash and issued
400,000 restricted shares of common stock, of which $14.5 million was immediately charged to expense to purchased
in-process research and development and $3.5 million was recorded as a non-current asset. The amount capitalized,
upon project success, will be evaluated and will either be charged to expense ratably over the life of the technology or
will be expensed as in-process research and development. If the project is not successful, then the full amount of the
$3.5 million fee will be refunded to us.

Interest Income. Interest income increased to $361,000 in 2004 from $22,000 in 2003. The increase was primarily
due to a higher investment balance as a result of the initial public offering in May 2004.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased to $348,000 in 2004 from $214,000 in 2003. This reflects a higher
outstanding debt balance than in the comparable period. The increase in average debt was primarily the result of
higher borrowing under our credit lines during the first half of 2004 before completion of the initial public offering.

Income Taxes. We have incurred net operating losses since inception and, as a result, we have paid no state or federal
income taxes. As of December 31, 2004, we had $76.5 million in federal net operating loss carryforwards, which
begin to expire in 2017, that are available to reduce future taxable income. We also have $45.0 million of state
carryforwards that are subject to annual limitations and begin to expire in 2007. The federal and state carryforwards
may be subject to annual utilization limitations under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 due to certain of our equity
transactions that have resulted in substantial changes in ownership. Due to the uncertainty of our ability to generate
sufficient taxable income to realize the carryforwards prior to their expiration, we have established valuation
allowances at December 2004 and 2003 to fully offset the deferred tax assets.

Deemed Dividend Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred Stock. In connection with issuances of preferred
stock in 2003, we recorded a non-cash charge of $7.9 million that represented the deemed dividend relating to the

intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature of the preferred stock. There was no similar item in 2004.

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders. We reported a net loss of $16.7 million in 2004 as compared to a net
loss of $25.7 million in 2003.
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Results of Operations. The following tables set forth, for the years indicated, certain operational information. A
percentage breakdown of net revenues is presented for certain operational items. The breakdown of cost of products
sold and gross margin is presented as a percentage of these respective items.

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 Change, 2003/2002
$ % $ % $ %
(in thousands)
Consolidated Statements of

Operations

Net revenues $ 34,120 100.0% $ 23,598 100.0%  $10,522 44.6%
Operating expenses:

Cost of products sold 16,759 49.1 12,384 52.5 4,375 35.3
Research and development expenses 5,173 15.2 3,921 16.6 1,252 31.9
Selling, general and administrative

expenses 29,800 87.3 26,741 113.3 3,059 11.4
Total operating expenses 51,732 151.6 43,046 182.4 8,686 20.2
Loss from operations (17,612) (51.6) (19,448) (82.4) 1,836 94
Interest income 22 0.1 158 0.7 (136) (86.1)
Interest expense 214) 0.7) (84) 0.4) (130) (154.8)
Net loss (17,804) (52.2) (19,374) (82.1) 1,570 8.1
Deemed dividend (7,878) (23.1) (7,878) (100.0)

Net loss attributable to common
stockholders $(25,682) (75.3)%  $(19,374) 82.1)% $ (6,308) (32.6)%

Years Ended December 31,

Change,
2003 2002 2003/2002
$ % $ % $ %
(in thousands)
Net Revenues, Cost of Products Sold
and Gross Margin
Net revenues (dollars and as a percent
of total)
Insulin pumps $21,176 62.1% $17,763 753% $ 3,413 19.2%
Ancillary supplies 12,944 37.9 5,835 24.7 7,109 121.8

Table of Contents 32



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Total $34,120 100.0%  $23,598 100.0%  $10,522 44.6%

Cost of products sold (dollars and as a
percent of total)

Insulin pumps $ 8,462 50.5% $ 8,080 652% $ 382 4.7%
Ancillary supplies 8,297 49.5 4,304 34.8 3,993 92.8
Total $16,759 100.0% $12,384 100.0% $ 4,375 35.3%

Gross margin (dollars and as a percent

of total)

Insulin pumps $12,714 732% $ 9,683 86.3% $ 3,031 31.3%
Ancillary supplies 4,647 26.8 1,531 13.7 3,116 203.5
Total $17,361 100.0% $11,214 100.0% $ 6,147 54.8%

Years Ended December

31,
2003 2002
Gross margin % (as a percent of net revenues)
Insulin pumps 60.0% 54.5%
Ancillary supplies 35.9% 26.2%
Total 50.9% 47.5%
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Net Revenues. Net revenues increased $10.5 million, or 44.6%, in 2003 to $34.1 million from $23.6 million in 2002.
The increase was caused by the growth in the overall market for insulin pumps, an increase in our share of both the
domestic and foreign markets in which we participate, and our larger installed base of patients using our pumps. Net
revenues from domestic and foreign sales were $31.7 million and $2.4 million, respectively, in 2003 and were

$23.0 million and $592,000, respectively, in 2002. Pump net revenues increased 19.2% from the prior year. The
increase in pump net revenues reflected an increase in unit shipments, while selling prices were comparable to prior
year levels. Ancillary supplies net revenues, consisting of infusion sets, pump cartridges, and other ancillary supplies,
increased 121.8% in 2003 from the prior year. Our average selling price of pumps remained relatively stable over this
period. The increase in net revenues for supplies was also due to increased unit sales, while prices remained near prior
year levels. The large growth in net revenues in ancillary supplies reflected our growth in the installed base of patients
using our pump in 2003 compared to 2002 and our retention of patients from prior years.

In November 2003, we implemented a program that permitted patients in the United States, at their option and at no
additional cost, to upgrade their purchase of the IR 1000 insulin pump to the IR 1200 insulin pump when it became
available. All pumps sold in the United States between November 1, 2003 and March 31, 2004 were subject to this
upgrade program. In accordance with SAB 104, we deferred the recognition of net revenues on such shipments of IR
1000 pumps due to the upgrade obligation. As of December 31, 2003, we recorded deferred net revenues of

$4.7 million and the related cost associated with deferred revenue of $1.0 million.

Cost of Products Sold. Cost of products sold increased $4.4 million, or 35.3%, to $16.8 million in 2003 from

$12.4 million in 2002, reflecting the increase in net revenues in 2003 from 2002. However, as a percent of net
revenues, cost of products sold declined to 49.1% in 2003 from 52.5% in 2002. Primary factors that contributed to the
decrease included better absorption of manufacturing overhead costs associated with increased production volumes,
improved purchasing efficiencies for supplies and pump materials, better manufacturing yields of our pumps, and
improvement in labor and manufacturing efficiency. Cost of insulin pumps sold increased by $382,000, or 4.7%, in
2003 as compared to 2002. The rate of this increase was lower than the rate of increase of pump sales due to the
economies and efficiencies described above. In addition, our strong focus on quality control and assurance resulted in
reduced scrap and product rework costs in 2003 compared to 2002.

Gross Margin. Gross margin improved to 50.9% in 2003 from 47.5% in 2002. Gross margin for pumps improved to
60.0% in 2003 from 54.5% in 2002. Gross margin improvement for pumps was caused by increases in sales volume,
better absorption of overhead, improved yields, and lower cost of raw materials. Ancillary supplies gross margin
increased to 35.9% in 2003 from 26.2% in 2002. Gross margin improvement for ancillary supplies was due to lower
cost sources of supplies.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses increased $1.3 million, or 31.9%, to $5.2 million in
2003 from $3.9 million in 2002 reflecting increased spending on activities to improve existing products and develop
new products. As a percentage of net revenues, research and development expenses declined to 15.2% in 2003 from
16.6% in 2002 due to the significant increase in net revenues in 2003 from the prior year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&A expenses increased $3.1 million, or 11.4%, to $29.8 million in
2003 from $26.7 million in 2002. Of this increase, $1.8 million was primarily related to higher costs principally
associated with increased headcount in the sales, clinical, and marketing functions supporting the significant increase
in sales activity from 2002. These costs were required to accomplish the increase in net revenues and the increased
requirements for educational support and training programs. In addition, higher administrative personnel costs
($343,000), commercial insurance ($390,000), and bad debts ($572,000), all of which reflect the growth in our
volume from 2002 to 2003, contributed to the increase in such costs. As a percent of net revenues, SG&A costs in
2003 declined to 87.3% of net revenues from 113.3% from 2002. This decline was largely due to our continuing
ability to gain economies of scale related to our significant growth in net revenues.
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Interest Income. Interest income declined to $22,000 in 2003 from $158,000 in 2002 reflecting lower average cash
and cash equivalents balances in 2003.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased to $214,000 in 2003 from $84,000 in 2002 reflecting a higher average
outstanding debt balance in 2003 as compared to 2002. The increase in average debt was primarily the result of higher
borrowing under our credit lines and a $1.0 million note payable that was issued to a bank in November 2002 and is
payable in monthly installments of $28,000 through November 2005.

Income Taxes. We have incurred net operating losses since inception and, as a result, we have paid no state or federal
income taxes. As of December 31, 2003, we had $63.9 million in federal net operating loss carryforwards that are

32

Table of Contents 35



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Table of Contents

available to reduce future taxable income. We also had $34.4 million of state carryforwards that are subject to annual
limitations. The federal and state carryforwards may be subject to annual utilization limitations under Internal
Revenue Code Section 382 due to certain of our equity transactions that have resulted in substantial changes in
ownership. Due to the uncertainty of our ability to generate sufficient taxable income to realize the carryforwards prior
to their expiration, we have established valuation allowances at December 2003 and 2002 to fully offset the deferred
tax assets.

Deemed Dividend Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred Stock. In connection with issuances of preferred
stock in 2003, we recorded a non-cash charge of $7.9 million that represented the deemed dividend relating to the
intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature of the preferred stock (see Note 9 to our consolidated financial
statements).

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders. We reported a net loss of $25.7 million in 2003 as compared to a net
loss of $19.4 million in 2002.

Seasonality and Quarterly Results
Our business is affected by the reimbursement practices of third party payors. Many patients defer purchasing

discretionary durable medical equipment, such as our insulin pumps, until they have satisfied their insurance
deductibles which typically occur in the latter half of the calendar year.

Quarterly Results

2004 2003
15t Qtr 20d Qir - 31 Qtr 4th Qtr 13tQtr  20dQtr 3 Qtr 4t Qtr
(in thousands except per share data)

Net revenues $ 4,837 $20,420 $22,654 $ 20,015 $ 7,380 $ 9,205 $11,291 $ 6,244
Gross margin 1,896 13,083 13,988 11,973 3,801 4,707 6,859 1,904
Net income (loss) (8,084) 2,636 2,819 (14,033) (4,470) (4,704) (2,212)  (6,418)
Deemed dividend 4,911) (152) (2,815)

Net income (loss)
attributable to common
stockholders $(8,084) $ 2,636 $ 2,819 $(14,033) $(9,381) $(4,856) $ (2,212) $(9,233)

Basic net income

(loss) attributable to

common stockholders per

share $20D* $ 024 $ 015 $ (©OT1) $ 243) $ (125 $ (0.57) $ (2.39)
Diluted net income

(loss) attributable to

common stockholders per

share $Q2onH* $ 014 $ 014 $ (071) $ 243) $ (125 $ (057 $ (239

*Basic and diluted net loss per share has been revised from ($2.07).
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Net revenues increased from $7.4 million in the first quarter of 2003 to $11.3 million in the third quarter of 2003. In
the fourth quarter of 2003 and the first quarter of 2004, our net revenues decreased due to our deferral of $4.7 million
and $4.5 million of net revenues, respectively, resulting from the pump upgrade program initiated in November 2003.
Additionally, our net revenues, in the first quarter of 2004, were impacted by our decision to stop shipment of pumps
for the last three weeks in March 2004 in anticipation of the launch of the IR 1200 in April 2004. Revenue for the
second quarter of 2004 benefited from the shipment of $2.3 million in revenue delayed at the end of the first quarter
and an additional $3.7 million of revenue previously deferred as a result of the pump upgrade program and due to
increased demand for our pumps and ancillary supplies. Revenue for the third quarter of 2004 benefited from

$5.5 million of revenue previously deferred as a result of the pump upgrade program and due to increased demand for
our pumps and ancillary supplies. Net revenue in the fourth quarter of 2004 fell slightly, despite increased demand, as
we completed the upgrade program during the third quarter of 2004 and there was no recognition of revenues
previously deferred from prior periods.

Gross margin improved from 52.7% in the first quarter of 2003 to 60.7% in the third quarter of 2003. The gross
margin for the fourth quarter of 2003 and the first quarter of 2004 dropped to 30.5% and 39.2%, respectively, due to
the deferral of net revenues and associated costs due to the upgrade program and the decision to stop shipments of
pumps for the last three weeks of March 2004. The gross margin in the second quarter of 2004 increased to 64.1% as a
result of the increased absorption of overhead due to the increased volume of pumps from the pump upgrade program
and the shipment in the second quarter of the unfulfilled orders from the first quarter which combined contributed
3.7% to the improvement of gross margins. Gross margin in the third quarter of 2004 was 61.7% which reflected a
benefit of approximately 4.9% from the increased volume of the pump upgrade program and a decrease due to
additional costs of approximately $439,000 due to increased costs associated with production ramp-up of the IR 1200.
Gross margin in the fourth quarter of 2004 was 59.8%, with no benefit from the pump upgrade program as our
obligation was completed in September 2004.
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Net loss before deemed dividend declined from $4.5 million in the first quarter of 2003 to $2.2 million in the third
quarter of 2003. Net loss increased in the fourth quarter of 2003 and the first quarter of 2004 to $6.4 million and

$8.1 million, respectively, due to the pump upgrade program and the resulting deferral of net revenues and associated
costs. Additionally, the net loss was increased due to our decision to stop the shipment of pumps for the last three
weeks of March 2004. In the second quarter of 2004, net income increased to $2.6 million. This was the result of
additional revenue associated with the shipment of additional pumps due to the pump upgrade program, the shipment
in the second quarter of the unfulfilled orders from the first quarter and the increased demand. Net income increased to
$2.8 million in the third quarter of 2004 due to the additional revenue associated with the shipment of additional
pumps due to the pump upgrade program and the increased demand for both pumps and ancillary supplies. The net
loss in the fourth quarter of 2004 was due to the write-off of purchased in-process research and development of

$14.5 million.

The deemed dividend was caused by the sale of preferred stock and warrants from January through April and in
November 2003. The deemed dividend in 2003 increased the net loss attributable to common stockholders for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Additional losses due to deemed dividends in 2004 are not anticipated.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have funded our operations primarily through the sale of equity securities yielding net proceeds of
$79.9 million through the quarter ended March 31, 2004. On May 25, 2004, we closed our IPO of 4,250,000 shares of
our common stock at $15 per share. Additionally, the underwriters exercised the over-allotment option for the
purchase of 637,500 additional shares of our common stock at the offering price of $15. Net proceeds, including the
exercise of the over-allotment option, were approximately $65.7 million.

In addition, we have funded our operations through lines of credit and long-term debt and lease financing. We
currently have one line of credit with a bank, totaling $6.0 million, of which no amount was outstanding at
December 31, 2004. We also have an equipment lease financing loan of $238,000 outstanding at December 31, 2004.

Cash Used in Operating Activities. Cash used in operating activities was $17.7 million and $18.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The major use of cash during 2004 was primarily for increased
working capital and the funding of the loss of $16.7 million, which included the write-off of $14.5 million of
purchased in-process research and development. The major use of cash during 2003 was to fund the loss of

$17.8 million. Accounts receivable increased by $10.5 million during 2004 due primarily to the growth of our
business, the extension of and the expansion of credit terms to certain distributors, and increased sales to Medicare
and Medicaid patients, which are traditionally slow payment payors. Our inventory increased by $7.6 million during
2004 due primarily to the growth of our business and the introduction of the IR 1200.

The pump upgrade program had a negative effect on our cash flows. During the quarter ended December 31, 2003, the
pump upgrade program did not have a negative effect on liquidity as we billed upon the shipment of all pumps subject
to the upgrade program. However, as we shipped the IR 1200 replacement pumps during the second and third quarters
of 2004, we did not generate any additional cash with these shipments. As a result, in 2004, our cash flows from
operating activities were negatively affected by the increase of inventory associated with IR 1000 pumps returned
under the upgrade program.

Cash Used in Investing Activities. Cash used in investing activities was $17.0 million and $1.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The major use of cash during 2004 was primarily for the Debiotech
acquisition. Additionally, investing activities consisted of the purchase of approximately $4.8 million and $1.5 million
of capital expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The capital expenditures were
primarily for manufacturing equipment and computer equipment to support the significant growth in our business
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during that period and to position us for expected growth in 2004 and beyond.

Cash Provided by Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities was $65.2 million and $18.9 million
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The net cash provided by financing activities during
2004 was primarily due to our IPO which raised net proceeds of $65.7 million. These amounts were partially offset by
the repayment of debt. The net cash provided by financing activities during 2003 was primarily due to proceeds of
$16.7 million from the sale of preferred stock.

Bank Credit Facilities. We have a line of credit with a bank under which we can borrow a maximum of $6.0 million
at an interest rate of 1.75% above the bank s prime rate. This line of credit contains a debt covenant that requires that
we maintain a certain net worth throughout the term of this line of credit. We were in compliance with this covenant at
December 31, 2004. Borrowings under this facility are limited to 75% of our eligible accounts receivable, which
generally consist of our accounts receivable that are less than 120 days old and 25% of our eligible inventory.
Borrowings are secured by a pledge of substantially all of our assets. As of December 31, 2004, there was no amount
outstanding on this line of credit.
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Equipment Financing. In November 2002, we entered into an equipment lease loan with a bank for $1.0 million. This
loan bears interest at a rate of 1.5% above the prime rate and matures on November 4, 2005. The principal is paid in
monthly installments of $28,000. As of December 31, 2004, the principal amount outstanding was $238,000.

Operating Leases. At December 31, 2004, commitments related to future lease payments under operating leases, are
$1.1 million in 2005, $1.2 million in 2006, $1.2 million in 2007, $1.2 million in 2008, $1.3 million in 2009 and

$5.7 million beyond 2009. There were no material commitments related to future capital expenditures on approved
projects at December 31, 2004. At December 31, 2004, we had $550,000 outstanding on a letter of credit for a security
deposit on the lease for our new facility.

As of December 31, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of $30.9 million. We expect to have negative cash flows
for 2005 resulting primarily from the $10.0 million acquisition of the Cygnus technology. Additionally, we expect
increased selling and administrative expenses as well as we continue to increase spending for personnel and
infrastructure improvement. We believe that our current cash, line of credit, and any cash generated from our
operations, will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for working capital and capital expenditures into 2006
and the foreseeable future. If existing cash and any cash generated from operations are insufficient to satisfy our
liquidity requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain an additional credit facility.
The sale of additional equity or debt securities could result in dilution to our stockholders. If additional funds are
raised through the issuance of debt securities, these securities could have rights senior to those associated with our
common stock and could contain covenants that would restrict our operations. Any additional financing may not be
available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, or at all. If we are unable to obtain this additional financing, we
may be required to reduce the scope of our planned product development and sales and marketing efforts.

Contractual Obligations. The table below identifies payment obligations for the periods indicated under our
contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004. The amounts set forth below reflect the current contractual
obligations and do not reflect managements expectations as to expenditures for the categories of obligations described
below during the periods identified below. The timing and/or the amount of the payments may be altered in
accordance with the terms of the contracts or new contractual obligations may be added. Examples of changes that
may occur are:

A contract is terminated prior to its expiration date or extended beyond the original date;
New leases are added; or

New lines of credit or term loans are added.
Contractual Obligations

Less More
than than
1 year 1-3years  3-5 years 5 years Total

(in thousands)
Lease financing:

Operating lease obligations $ 1,146 $ 2364 $§ 2483 $ 5680 $11,673
Capital lease obligations 201 234 61 496
Purchase obligations(!) 7,700 20,400 22,998 51,098
Letter of credit 550 550
Long-term borrowings:

Equipment note bank 238 238
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Total obligations $9.835 $ 22998 $§ 25542 $ 5680 $64,055

(1) We have assumed that the required materials will generally remain consistent with prior years. The amount of the
obligation is based on future installed base numbers that are currently unknown.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a significant impact on our operations over the past three years and we do not expect it to have a
significant impact on the results of operations or financial condition in the foreseeable future.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151 ( SFAS 151 ), Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4. SFAS 151 amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing, to clarify that abnormal
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material should be recognized as current period
charges and requires the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory based on the normal capacity of the
production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2005. Early adoption is permitted for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after the date SFAS 151
was issued. SFAS 151 should be applied prospectively. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R) ( SFAS 123 (R),  Share-Based Payment. SFAS 123(R) revises
SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and its related implementation guidance. SFAS 123(R) will require compensation costs related
to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial statements (with limited exceptions). The

amount of compensation cost will be measured based on the grant-date fair value of the equity or liability instruments
issued. Compensation cost will be recognized over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for the
award. This statement is effective as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after
June 15, 2005. The full impact of adoption of SFAS 123(R) cannot be predicted at this time because it will depend on
levels of share-based payments granted in the future. However, had we adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the
impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described in the disclosure of pro forma
net loss and loss per share in Note 2 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements. SFAS 123(R) also requires

the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow,

rather than as an operating cash flow as required under current literature. This requirement will reduce net operating
cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after adoption. We are unable to estimate what those
amounts will be in the future because they depend on, among other things, when employees exercise stock options.

RISK FACTORS

We are a medical device company and our products and processes are regulated and monitored by the FDA
and by foreign regulators. If we fail to comply with any FDA or foreign regulations, our business may be
harmed. We recently received a Warning Letter from the FDA resulting from an inspection of our facility for
compliance with the FDA Quality Systems Regulation (QSR) in October 2004. The FDA made a number of
observations of alleged QSR deviations. The FDA could bring an enforcement action against us resulting in the
issuance of a public warning letter, product recall or seizure, complete or partial shutdown of our
manufacturing operations, and the imposition of criminal and civil fines or penalties, which would adversely
affect our net revenues and our future profitability.

Quality Systems Regulation. The manufacturing processes for our pumps, cartridges, and infusion sets are
required to comply with the FDA s QSR, which covers the methods and documentation of the design, testing,
production, control, quality assurance, labeling, packaging, storage, and shipping of our products. The FDA
enforces the QSR through announced or unannounced inspections.

The FDA recently last inspected our facility for QSR compliance in October 2004. The audit resulted in a
Form 483 citation. A Form FDA 483 consists of observations by an FDA investigator and does not constitute

a final determination by the FDA regarding QSR compliance.

The observations include allegations that we have not ensured that an adequate and effective quality system
has been fully implemented and maintained at all levels of our organization. Specifically, the FDA
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investigator observed instances in which we have not documented, evaluated, reported and trended complaints
in a timely manner.

In November 2004, we sent the FDA a written response indicating the corrective actions that we have taken,
and that we will take, in response to the FDA s observations. We received a Warning Letter, dated
February 24, 2005, from the FDA, stemming from the October inspection. We responded to the FDA within
the requisite 15-day time period, but have not yet received a response from the agency regarding the
suitability of our responses.

The FDA is likely to conduct a reinspection of our facility to verify that we have corrected the alleged

deviations.
36

Table of Contents 43



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Table of Contents

Although we believe that these corrective actions will adequately address the FDA observations, we cannot
assure you that the FDA will agree or that it will find our written statement of completed and proposed
corrective actions adequate, that upon reinspection the FDA will agree that corrective actions have been
implemented adequately, or that the FDA will refrain from enforcement action based upon the current or
future inspectional findings. The enforcement actions the FDA could take against us include issuance of a
public warning letter, product recall or seizure, complete or partial shut down of our manufacturing
operations, and the imposition of criminal and civil fines or penalties.

The manufacturing line for our cartridge vendor has not been inspected to date. If our third party cartridge
vendor or our original equipment manufacturer supplier of our infusion sets fails a QSR, our operations could
be disrupted and our production delayed.

Product Recalls. The FDA and similar governmental authorities in other countries have the authority to
require the recall of our products in the event of material deficiencies or defects in design, manufacture, or
quality systems. A government mandated or voluntary recall by us could occur as a result of component
failures, manufacturing errors, or design defects in any of our products. Any recall of our products would
divert managerial and financial resources and harm our reputation with patients, healthcare providers, and
payors, as well as reduce our net revenues and future profitability.

New Products 510(k) Clearances or Pre-market Approvals. Our products are medical devices that are
subject to extensive regulation in the United States and in foreign countries where we do business. Unless an
exemption applies, each medical device that we market in the United States must first receive either 510(k)
clearance or PMA from the FDA. Either process can be lengthy and expensive. The FDA s 510(k) clearance
process usually takes from three to six months from the date the application is completed and accepted for
filing by the FDA, but may take longer. Although we have obtained 510(k) clearance for our insulin pumps,
our 510(k) clearance can be modified or revoked if safety or effectiveness problems develop. The PMA
process is much more costly, lengthy, and uncertain. It generally takes from one to three years from the date
the application is completed and accepted for filing by the FDA. However, achieving a completed application
is a process that may take numerous clinical trials and require the filing of amendments over time. We expect
that our continuous glucose sensor under development will require a PMA. Therefore, even if the product is
successfully developed, it may not be commercially available for a number of years. We may not be able to
obtain additional clearances or approvals in a timely fashion, or at all. Delays in obtaining clearances or
approvals could adversely affect our net revenues and future profitability.

Product Modifications New 510(k) Clearances or PMAs. Any modification to a FDA cleared device that
could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness, or that would constitute a major change in its intended
use, requires a new FDA 510(k) clearance or possibly a PMA. The FDA requires every manufacturer to make
this determination in the first instance, but the FDA can review and disagree with any such decision. We
modified aspects of the IR 1200 since receiving regulatory clearance, but believe that new 510(k) clearances
are not required. We may make additional modifications to the IR 1200 and future products after they have
received clearance or approval, and in appropriate circumstances, determine that new clearance or approval is
unnecessary. If the FDA subsequently requires us to seek 510(k) clearances or PMA supplements for any
modifications to a previously cleared product, we may be required to cease marketing or recall the modified
product until we obtain this clearance or approval. Also, in these circumstances, we may be subject to
significant regulatory fines or penalties.

Medical Device Reporting. The FDA requires manufacturers to file Medical Device Reports (MDRs) upon

receiving reports of device malfunction or serious or life threatening injury that may have been caused by the
medical device. MDRs have been filed with the FDA for the R1000, IR 1000 and IR 1200 insulin pumps.
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Based upon the FDA s review of MDRs, the agency can require additional labeling, physician or consumer
notification, recalls, or redesign. Any such regulatory action by the FDA could cause our net revenues and
future profitability to suffer.

Adbvertising and Promotion. Our sales force promotes and markets our products using a variety of accepted
sales tactics including sampling, physician visits, advertisements, marketing literature, and an Internet
website. While our promotional practices and materials are carefully screened and reviewed internally, the
FDA may deem information to exceed approved labeling or to be false and misleading. It may request that
promotional claims be revised, discontinued, or that physicians and patients be notified of off-label
promotion. Any compliance action by the FDA may jeopardize patient relationships and reduce our product
net revenues.
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If the IR 1250 or the IR 1200 experiences technical issues, we could have reduced demand for the pump
resulting in reduced net revenues in a particular quarter or year or increased warranty costs or scrap costs.

The IR 1250 and 1200 pumps are small, complex, densely packaged products that are subject to significant abuse in
the field. We began shipping our newest pump, the IR 1250, in February 2005. We expect the sales of the IR 1250 to
supplant sales of the IR 1200 domestically, but we expect to continue to sell the IR 1200 internationally. There is
limited patient use data for the IR 1250. If the IR 1250/1200 experiences technical issues, such as problems with
reliability, reports of actual or adverse events, or manufacturing issues, we could decide to temporarily halt shipments
of such product or realize reduced demand for such product, resulting in reduced net revenues in a particular quarter or
year.

We face competition from several competitors some of whom have far greater resources, which may make it
more difficult for us to achieve significant market penetration.

The market for our products is intensely competitive, subject to rapid change, and significantly affected by new
product introductions and other market activities of industry participants. We currently have five principal
competitors:

Medtronic MiniMed, a division of Medtronic Inc.;

Roche Disetronic, a division of Roche Diagnostics;

Smiths Medical MD, Inc. (formerly known as Deltec, Inc.), a subsidiary of Smiths Group plc;
Nipro Medical Corporation, a subsidiary of Nipro Corporation; and

Sooil Development Co., Ltd.
Some of our competitors are large, well capitalized companies with significantly greater resources for product
development and marketing. Medtronic has the majority share of the insulin pump market in the United States. Roche
Disetronic currently has the leading market share of the insulin pump market in Europe. Roche Disetronic is currently
prohibited by the FDA from selling its insulin pumps in the United States. We anticipate that Roche Disetronic will
reenter the United States insulin pump market in the second quarter of 2005.

At any time, other companies may develop additional competitive products. If we were unable to compete effectively
against existing or future competitors, net revenues of our products would decline. Some of our competitors compete
by lowering the price of their insulin pumps or ancillary supplies. If these competitors products were to gain
acceptance by payors, healthcare professionals, or patients, a downward pressure on prices could result. If prices were
to fall, we may not improve our sales growth sufficiently to achieve profitability.

We have approximately $1.2 million of inventory of IR 1000 used pumps as a result of our upgrade program
and warranty repair which we expect to sell sometime in the future. Due to rapid product development, this
inventory could become obsolete and could result in a write-off of inventory if we cannot sell these used pumps.

We believe that there is a market for refurbished used pumps both in United States and outside the United States.
Certain of our competitors have sold refurbished used pumps successfully throughout the world. We have just started
selling refurbished used pumps and believe that we have adequately reserved for obsolete inventory. If we are
unsuccessful at establishing a sufficiently large market for refurbished used pumps, our inventory reserve may not be
adequate.
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We may become subject to claims of infringement or misappropriation of the intellectual property rights of
others, which could prohibit us from shipping applicable product or require us to obtain licenses from third
parties, to develop non-infringing alternatives, and/or subject us to substantial monetary damages and
injunctive relief.

Third parties could, in the future, assert infringement or misappropriation claims against us with respect to our current
or future products. Although we perform investigations of the intellectual property of third parties, we cannot be
certain that we have not infringed the intellectual property rights of such third parties or others. Any such infringement
or misappropriation claim could result in significant costs, substantial damages, and our inability to manufacture,
market, or sell our existing or future products. We could be prohibited from shipping product that is found to infringe.
We also could be forced to obtain licenses from third parties or to develop a non-infringing alternative, which could
be costly and time-consuming. A court could also order us to pay compensatory damages for such infringement, plus
prejudgment interest, and could, in addition, treble the compensatory damages and award attorney fees. These
damages could be substantial and could harm our reputation, business, financial condition, and operating results. A
court also could enter orders that temporarily, preliminarily, or permanently enjoin us and/or our customers from
making, using, selling, offering to sell, or importing our products, or could enter an order mandating that we undertake
certain remedial activities. Depending on the nature of the relief ordered by the court, we could become liable for
additional damages to third parties.

The medical device industry is litigious with respect to enforcement of intellectual property rights. One of our
competitors, Medtronic MiniMed, is currently suing another one of our competitors, Smiths Medical MD, Inc., for

infringement on certain patents. We have
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reviewed these patents with our patent counsel and believe that we have the right to make, use, sell, and offer to sell
our products without infringement liability.

A significant disruption by certain of our vendors could have a material adverse effect on our production
output, net revenues, and overall financial performance.

We rely upon certain vendors to supply certain parts for our products on a sole source basis. Our arrangements with

these vendors are not on a contractual basis and can be terminated by either party with no advance notice. Although

we have identified alternative vendors for these sole source vendors if there is a sudden termination, we may not be

able to qualify these vendors in sufficient time without realizing a disruption in production output. Such a disruption
could have a material adverse effect on our production output, net revenues, and overall financial performance.

We have a history of net losses and may never achieve or maintain the profitability levels desired by investors.

We have incurred losses every year since our inception in 1996. We incurred losses of $16.7 million in 2004,

$17.8 million in 2003, and $19.4 million in 2002. As of December 31, 2004, we had an accumulated deficit of

$99.8 million. We will need to achieve the revenues goals we have set for the year 2005, and keep our spending
within budget, in order to achieve the income goals we have set forth. We may be unable to do so, and therefore may
never achieve the desired income goals. Even if we do achieve the desired level of profitability, we may not be able to
sustain or increase profitability on a quarterly or annual basis due to, among other things, competitive pressures and
regulatory compliance.

Our success will depend on our ability to attract and retain our personnel.

We have benefited substantially from the leadership and performance of our senior management, especially Katherine
D. Crothall, our President and Chief Executive Officer. Our success will depend on our ability to retain our current
management and to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future, including scientists, clinicians, engineers, and
other highly skilled personnel. Competition for senior management personnel, as well as scientists, clinicians, and
engineers, is intense and there can be no assurances that we will be able to retain our personnel. The loss of the
services of Ms. Crothall, certain other members of our senior management, scientists, clinicians, or engineers could
prevent the implementation and completion of our objectives, including, without limitation, increasing our market
share for our existing products, the development and introduction of our products under development, and our revenue
goals. The loss of a member of senior management or our professional staff would require the remaining executive
officers to divert immediate and substantial attention to seeking a replacement.

Additionally, the sale and after-sale support of an insulin pump is logistically complex, requiring us to maintain an
extensive infrastructure of field sales personnel, diabetes educators, customer support, inside sales, and billing and
collections personnel. We face considerable challenges in recruiting, training, managing, motivating, and retaining
these teams, including managing geographically dispersed efforts. If we fail to maintain and grow an adequate pool of
trained and motivated personnel, our reputation could suffer and our financial position could be adversely affected.

If the pace of our product development fails to keep up with that of our competitors, our net revenues and
future profitability could be adversely affected.

We are currently developing further enhancements to the IR 1250/1200, future generation pumps, and new products
such as our ezSet Infusion Set, ezSet Inserter, and continuous glucose sensor. Development of these products requires
additional research and development expenditures. Marketing of these products may require FDA and other regulatory
clearances or approvals. We may not be successful in developing, manufacturing, or marketing these new products.
Furthermore, if our pace of product development fails to keep up with our competitors, our net revenues and future
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profitability could be adversely affected.

In our acquisitions of Cygnus and Debiotech technologies, or in future acquisitions, if any, we could encounter
difficulties that harm our business.

We have acquired and may acquire, in the future, additional companies, products or technologies that we believe to be
complimentary to our business. If we do so, we may have difficulty integrating the acquired personnel, financials,
operations, products or technologies. Acquisitions may be dilutive to existing stockholders, disrupt our ongoing
business, distract our management and employees and increase our expenses, which could harm our business. We also
cannot be assured that we will realize value from any acquisition that would justify the consideration paid.
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Our plans to achieve our future profitability goals depend upon the successful completion of the development
of our ezSet infusion set, the commercial acceptance of this product, and our ability to have this product
manufactured at low cost.

Infusion sets are ancillary supplies used in the delivery of insulin to patients using an insulin pump. We currently
purchase infusion sets from third party suppliers. Over the last several years, we have been developing our own
infusion set called the ezSet infusion set. We believe that we can manufacture this set at a lower cost than the cost at
which we currently procure infusion sets from third party suppliers. If we are not successful in completing the
development of this product, manufacturing this product at our anticipated costs and acceptable quality, or achieving
commercial acceptance of this product, our ability to achieve our future profitability goals may be adversely affected.

Technological breakthroughs in diabetes monitoring, treatment, or prevention could render our products
obsolete.

The diabetes treatment market is subject to rapid technological change and product innovation. Our products are based
on our proprietary technology, but a number of companies and medical researchers are pursuing new delivery devices,
delivery technologies, sensing technologies, procedures, drugs, and other therapeutics for the monitoring, treatment,
and/or prevention of insulin-requiring diabetes. FDA approval of a commercially viable continuous glucose monitor
or sensor, in particular by one of our competitors that provides real time and accurate data could have a material
adverse effect on our net revenues and future profitability. Several of our competitors are in various stages of
development of continuous glucose monitors or sensors, and the FDA has approved three of these products. None of
these products is labeled for use as a substitute for current finger-stick blood glucose testing. In addition, the National
Institutes of Health and other supporters of diabetes research are continually seeking ways to prevent, cure, or improve
treatment of diabetes. Therefore, our products may be rendered obsolete by technological breakthroughs in diabetes
monitoring, treatment, or prevention.

If we are unable to capture the recurring purchases of ancillary supplies by patients using our pumps, we may
not be able to adequately implement our growth strategy, resulting in a decrease in our net revenues and
limitations on attaining future profitability.

One of our core strategies, in terms of both realizing significant revenue growth and future profitability, is to capture
the recurring sales of ancillary supplies to patients using our pumps. If patients stop buying ancillary supplies from us
for any number of reasons, including our inability to timely deliver ancillary supplies or more competitive pricing
from other suppliers, we may not be able to adequately implement our growth strategy, resulting in a decrease in our
net revenues and limitations on attaining future profitability.

Our inability to adequately protect our intellectual property could allow our competitors and others to produce
products based on our patented or proprietary technology and other intellectual property rights, which could
substantially impair our ability to compete.

Our success and ability to compete is dependent, in part, upon our ability to maintain the proprietary nature of our
technologies. We rely on a combination of patent, trade secret, copyright and trademark law, and nondisclosure
agreements to protect our intellectual property. However, such methods may not be adequate to protect us.

We may in the future need to assert claims of infringement against third parties to protect our intellectual property.
The outcome of litigation to enforce our intellectual property rights in patents, copyrights, or trademarks is highly
unpredictable, could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources, and could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows regardless of the final outcome of such litigation. In the
event of an adverse judgment, a court could hold that some or all of our asserted intellectual property rights are not
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infringed, invalid, or unenforceable, and could award attorney fees. Despite our efforts to safeguard our unpatented
and unregistered intellectual property rights, we may not be successful in doing so or the steps taken by us in this
regard may not be adequate to detect or deter misappropriation of our technology or to prevent an unauthorized third
party from copying or otherwise obtaining and using our products, technology, or other information that we regard as
proprietary. Our inability to adequately protect our intellectual property could allow our competitors and others to
produce products based on our patented or proprietary technology and other intellectual property rights, which could
substantially impair our ability to compete.

We may experience significant fluctuations in our quarterly results.

The fluctuations in our quarterly results of operations have and will continue to result from numerous factors,
including:
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delays in shipping our products due to technical issues;

practices of insurance companies and other third party payors with respect to reimbursement for our products,
which tend to result in increased sales of our pumps later in the calendar year after patients deductibles are
satisfied;

market acceptance of our products;

timing of regulatory approvals and clearances;

new product introductions;

competition;

our ability to manufacture our products efficiently; and

timing of research and development expenditures.
These factors, some of which are not within our control, may cause the price of our stock to fluctuate substantially. In
particular, if our quarterly operating results fail to meet or exceed the expectations of securities analysts or investors,
our stock price could drop suddenly and significantly. We believe the quarterly comparisons of our financial results
are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of our future performance. For a further
discussion of the fluctuations of our operating results, see Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations Seasonality and Quarterly Results.

Product liability suits, whether or not meritorious, could be brought against us due to an alleged defective
product or for the misuse of our products. These suits could result in expensive and time-consuming litigation,
payment of substantial damages, and an increase in our insurance rates.

If our products are defectively designed or manufactured, contain defective components, or are misused, or if someone
claims any of the foregoing, whether or not meritorious, we may become subject to substantial and costly litigation.
Misusing our products or failing to adhere to the operating guidelines of our insulin pumps in our user guides could
cause significant harm to patients, including death. In addition, if our operating guidelines are found to be inadequate,
we may be subject to liability. Product liability claims could divert management s attention from our core business, be
expensive to defend and result in sizable damage awards against us. While we believe that we are reasonably insured
against these risks, we may not have sufficient insurance coverage for all future claims. Any product liability claims
brought against us, with or without merit, could increase our product liability insurance rates or prevent us from
securing continuing coverage, could harm our reputation in the industry, could prevent or interfere with our product
commercialization efforts, and could reduce product net revenues. Product liability claims in excess of our insurance
coverage would be paid out of cash reserves harming our financial condition, reducing our operating results and cash
flows.

Failure to secure or retain third party coverage or reduced reimbursement for our products by third party
payors could adversely affect our business and operating results.

Substantially all of our pumps and ancillary supplies are paid for by third party payors, including private insurance
companies, health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations, Medicare, and Medicaid. Healthcare
market initiatives in the United States may lead third party payors to decline or reduce reimbursement for our
products. Failure to secure or retain third party coverage or reduced reimbursement for our products by third party
payors could adversely affect our business and operating results.
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We plan to expand further into markets outside the United States, which subjects us to additional business and
regulatory risks.

We intend to increase our market share internationally and expect that a material portion of our net revenues and
expenses will be derived from operations in foreign countries. Conducting business internationally subjects us to a
number of risks and uncertainties including:

fluctuations in foreign currencies;
41
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unexpected delays or changes in regulatory requirements;
availability of reimbursement within prevailing healthcare payment systems;
delays and expenses associated with tariffs and other trade barriers;

restrictions on and impediments to repatriation of our funds and our distributors ability to make payments to
us;

political and economic instability;
difficulties and costs associated with attracting and maintaining third party distributors;
uncertainty in shipping and receiving products and product components;

increased difficulty in collecting accounts receivable and longer accounts receivable cycles in certain foreign
countries; and

adverse tax consequences or overlapping tax structures.
We conduct business in a heavily regulated industry and if we fail to comply with these laws and government
regulations, we could suffer penalties or be required to make significant changes to our operations.
The healthcare industry is subject to extensive federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to:

billing for services;

financial relationships with physicians and other referral sources;

inducements and courtesies being given to patients;

quality of medical equipment and services;

confidentiality, maintenance, and security issues associated with medical records and individually identifiable
health information;

false claims;

professional licensure; and

labeling products.
These laws and regulations are extremely complex and, in some cases, still evolving. In many instances, the industry
does not have the benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation of these laws and regulations.
To the best of our knowledge, we are conforming to all applicable healthcare industry regulations and laws.
Regulatory authorities that enforce the various statutes may determine that we are violating federal, state, or local laws

and we may need to restructure some of our operations.

If our operations are found to be in violation of any of these federal, state, or local laws and regulations described in
this risk factor or the other governmental regulations which govern our activities, we may be subject to the applicable
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penalty associated with the violation, including civil and criminal penalties, damages, fines, or curtailment of our
operations, which, individually or in the aggregate, would adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our
financial results. The risk of us being found in violation of these laws and regulations is increased by the fact that
many of them have not been fully interpreted by the regulatory authorities or the courts, and their provisions are open
to a variety of interpretations. Any action against us for violation of these laws or regulations, even if we successfully
defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses and divert our management s attention from the
operation of our business.
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In addition, healthcare laws and regulations may change significantly in the future. We monitor these developments
and will modify our operations from time to time as the regulatory environment changes. Any new healthcare laws or
regulations may adversely affect our business. A review of our business by courts or regulatory authorities may result
in a determination that could adversely affect our operations. Also, the healthcare regulatory environment may change
in a way that restricts our operations.

We are not aware of any governmental healthcare investigations involving our executives, our managers, or us. Any
future healthcare investigations of our executives, our managers, or us could result in significant liabilities or penalties
to us, as well as adverse publicity.

All of our operations are conducted at a single location. Any disruption at our facility could increase our
expenses.

All of our operations are conducted at a single location. We take precautions to safeguard our facility, including
insurance, health and safety protocols, and off-site storage of computer data. However, a natural disaster, such as a
tornado, fire, or flood, could cause substantial delays in our operations, damage or destroy our manufacturing
equipment or inventory, and cause us to incur additional expenses. The insurance we maintain against fires, floods,
and other natural disasters may not be adequate to cover our losses in any particular case.

Any disruption in the operation of our proprietary business-management software could interrupt our
operations or interfere with our ability to provide service to patients, healthcare providers and payors, which
could result in reduced net revenues and adversely affect our operations and financial performance.

We have developed and utilize a proprietary business-management software, ACcessIT, which is critical to our sales,
billing, and collections, and customer service functions. Our operations depend upon the proper functioning of
ACcessIT. There are no commercial substitutes to this software. This software, as well as any ancillary hardware, is
vulnerable to damage or interruption from:

fire, flood, and other natural disasters;

power loss, computer systems failures, Internet and telecommunications or data network failure, operator
negligence, improper operation by or supervision of employees, physical and electronic loss of data or
security breaches, misappropriation, and similar events; and

computer viruses.
Any disruption in the operation of our propriety business-management software, the loss of employees knowledgeable
about such software, or our failure to continue to effectively modify and upgrade such software could interrupt our
operations or interfere with our ability to provide service to patients, healthcare providers, and payors, which could
result in reduced net revenues and adversely affect our operations and financial performance.

The market price for our common stock may be volatile and could result in a decline in the value of your
investment.

The price at which our common stock trades may be volatile. The market price of our common stock is subject to
significant fluctuations in response to our operating results, general trends in prospects for the insulin pump industry,
announcements by our competitors, analyst recommendations, our ability to meet or exceed analysts or investors
expectations, the condition of the financial markets, and other factors. In addition, the stock market in recent years has
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of companies. These fluctuations, as well as general economic and market conditions, may adversely
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affect the market price of our common stock notwithstanding our actual operating performance. Significant volatility

may lead to securities class action litigation against us. Whether or not meritorious, litigation brought against us could
result in substantial costs and a diversion of management s attention and resources. Our insurance to cover claims of
this sort may not be adequate.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risks related to our operations result primarily from changes in interest rates. As of December 31, 2004, cash
equivalents of $29.7 million were maintained in money market funds of short-term duration. We believe that a 10%
change in interest rates would not have a material impact on the results of our operations. The interest rate on our
credit facilities is based off the prime rate of our lenders. As of December 31, 2004, we had no amounts outstanding
under our credit facilities.

Although approximately 7.2% of our net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 were derived from sales
outside of the United States and certain of our product components are sourced from suppliers outside of the United
States, all of our transactions are invoiced in U.S. dollars. Accordingly, we have no direct exposure to currency
exchange risk. However, future fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar may affect demand for our products sold in
foreign countries and the cost of our foreign-sourced components. As of December 31, 2004, we were not engaged in
any foreign currency hedging activities

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

No reports on Form 8-K were filed during 2004 or 2003 relating to any disagreements with accountants on accounting
and financial disclosures.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by
this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report were designed and
functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in
reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission s rules and forms.

(b) Changes in internal controls. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
identified in connection with the evaluation of such internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 which materially affected, or are reasonable likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning directors and executive officers, appearing under the captions Governance of the Company ,

Election of Directors and Other Matters -- Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in our Proxy
Statement to be filed in connection with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders with the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days after close of the fiscal year covered by this annual report (the Proxy Statement ), are
incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 10.

Edward L. Cahill has served as a member of our board of directors since March 2001. Mr. Cahill also serves as a
director of Occupational Health + Rehabilitation Inc. (OTCBB: OHRI) and is a trustee of Johns Hopkins Medicine
and Johns Hopkins Health System. Since April 2000, Mr. Cahill has been a Managing Partner at HLM Venture
Partners, which invests in emerging healthcare, business services and technology companies. From June 1995 until
April 2000, Mr. Cahill was a Founding Partner of Cahill, Warnock & Company (now Camden Partners), a Baltimore
private equity firm. Prior to that, Mr. Cahill was a Managing Director of Alex. Brown & Sons, where he headed the
firm s Health Care group from 1986 through 1995. Mr. Cahill holds an A.B. from Williams College and a Master of
Public and Private Management degree from Yale University.

Graeme Crothall has served as a member of our board of directors since March 2002. Mr. Crothall is founder,
President and Chief Executive Office of GCA Services Group, Inc., which provides facilities management services to
corporate, industrial, and education clients and has been in business since January 2003. Prior to that, in 1991,

Mr. Crothall formed Crothall Services Group, which provided facilities management services to nationwide hospitals,
and which he sold to Compass Group PLC in 2001. Mr. Crothall continued to work for Crothall Services Group until
December 2002. Mr. Crothall is a graduate of the University of Canterbury, New Zealand, with a postgraduate degree
in Mathematics. Mr. Crothall is the husband of Katherine D. Crothall, our President and Chief Executive Officer.

William A. Graham IV has served as a member of our board of directors since December 1999. Since June 1999,

Mr. Graham has been Chairman of The Graham Company, a regional insurance agency/brokerage specializing in
commercial insurance. From June 1970 to June 1999, Mr. Graham served as President of this family-owned business.
Mr. Graham joined the business upon graduation from college, and became sole owner of the company in 1972.

Mr. Graham holds a B.S. in Business Administration from Bucknell University, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania.

David Joseph has served as a member of our board of directors since 1996 and is the chairman of our governance and
nominating committee. Mr. Joseph is co-founder, director, Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer of Othera
Pharmaceuticals Inc., which designs and develops ophthalmic drugs, and was founded in January 2002. He previously
served as President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of Orthovita, Inc. an orthopedics biomaterials company
which he founded in 1993. He retired from Orthovita as Chairman and Director in June 2003. Prior to Orthovita,

Mr. Joseph co-founded Surgical Laser Technologies, Inc. in 1985, and served as Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, taking the company public in 1989. Mr. Joseph holds a B.S. from King s College, and a M.B.A. in Healthcare
Administration from Xavier University.

John J. McDonough has served as a member of our board of directors since March 2002 and is the chairman of our
audit committee. Mr. McDonough co-founded and has been Chairman of McDonough Medical Products Corporation,
which manufactures, markets, and supplies medical and dental imaging devices, since June 2001. Mr. McDonough
served as Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Newell Rubbermaid Inc. from January 1998 through
December 2000. Prior to that, Mr. McDonough was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of GENDEX Corporation,
which he founded in April 1983, until it merged with DENTSPLY, a manufacturer of dental supplies and equipment
for the worldwide dental market, in June 1993. He was Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of DENTSPLY
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International Inc. until February 1995, then served as Vice Chairman of DENTSPLY through October 1995.

Mr. McDonough is the immediate past Chairman of the International Board of the Juvenile Diabetes Research
Foundation. He is currently a member of the Board of the Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation International and
serves on its Executive Committee and special committees of the Board. Mr. McDonough graduated with honors from
the University of Notre Dame, and is a certified public accountant.

Thomas Morse has served as a member of our board of directors since March 2001 and is the chairman of our
compensation committee. In 1996, Mr. Morse co-founded, and currently serves as principal of Liberty Venture
Partners, a venture capital firm that specializes in emerging growth companies in the healthcare and technology
industries. Prior to that, Mr. Morse was at Philadelphia Ventures, an early stage venture capital firm. Mr. Morse has
received the Certified Financial Analyst designation and holds a B.S. from the U.S. Naval Academy and a M.B.A.
from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania.

A. Peter Parsons has served as a member of our board of directors since November 1998. Since January 1988,

Mr. Parsons has been a partner at the law firm of Davis Wright Tremaine LLP, specializing in the areas of technology,
corporate and securities law, and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Parsons holds a B.S. in Finance and Accounting from
Florida Atlantic University and a J.D. from Duke
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University School of Law and is a former certified public accountant.

Katherine D. Crothall founded Animas Corporation in 1996 and has served as our President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board since 1996. From October 1988 to September 1993, Ms. Crothall was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Luxar Corporation. Luxar, which she founded in 1988, sold and manufactured CO, lasers for
cosmetic, oral, surgical, dental, dermatological, and surgical applications. Ms. Crothall also founded and was
President of Laakmann Electro-Optics, which manufactured and marketed CO, lasers, and was sold to Johnson &
Johnson in 1981. Ms. Crothall holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the University of Pennsylvania and a Ph.D.
in Electrical Engineering from the University of Southern California.

Richard Baron has served as our Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer since May 2000. From

March 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Baron was Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer for Genex Services, a
managed care provider for workers compensation and disability. From August 1993 to March 1997, Mr. Baron was
Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer for Marsam Pharmaceuticals Inc., a generic manufacturer of
injectible anti-infectives. Mr. Baron is a certified public accountant and holds a B.S. in Economics, concentration in
Accounting, from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania.

Audrey Finkelstein has served as our Executive Vice President Marketing, Sales and Clinical Affairs since May 2003.
From November 1998 to April 2003, Ms. Finkelstein served as our Vice President of Marketing and Clinical Affairs.
Prior to this position, Ms. Finkelstein was Director of Clinical Affairs at Luxar Corporation, and subsequently at ESC
Medical Systems, which acquired Luxar. Ms. Finkelstein holds a B.S. in Education from Baruch College in New York
City.

James McGee has served as our Vice President, Sales since June 2003. From February 1997 to March 2003,

Mr. McGee held various positions with Medtronic MiniMed, a division of Medtronic, Inc., a provider of insulin pump
therapy, including Vice President of Sales and Marketing (Home Medical Supplies), Director of Managed Care and
Vice President of Patient Services. Mr. McGee holds a B.S. in Biology from the University of Central Florida.

Patrick Paul has served as our Vice President, Advanced Technology since November 2004 and prior to that, as
Vice-President, Engineering since July 2001. From August 1998 to June 2001, Mr. Paul was the U.S. R&D Director
for Siemens Hearing Instruments, Inc. From October 1988 until August 1998, Mr. Paul held several positions with
Sulzer-Intermedics Corporation, the Cardiac Rhythm Management division of the Swiss conglomerate Sulzer Ltd. At
Sulzer-Intermedics Corporation, Mr. Paul served as Manager of Product Development, Director of Bradycardia
Development, and then Director of Advanced Technologies. Mr. Paul holds an Electrical Engineering Degree from the
University of Bordeaux in France.

Doug Woodruff has served as our Vice President, Quality and Regulatory Affairs since December 2004. From

July 2003 to December 2004, Mr. Woodruff was the Quality Assurance Director from Datascope Corporation, a
medical device manufacturer. From April 1999 until July 2003, Mr. Woodruff was Vice President of Quality Affairs
and Regulatory Affairs for MedSource Technologies, a contract manufacturer. Mr. Woodruff holds a B.S and a M.S.
in Engineering from Washington State University.

Executive Officers
Our executive officers are elected by, and serve at the discretion of, our board of directors. Other than Graeme
Crothall, a director, who is the husband of Katherine D. Crothall, our President, Chief Executive Officer, and

Chairman of the Board, there are no family relationships among our directors and executive officers.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
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We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which can be viewed on our by our website at
http://www.animascorp.com (under Investor Relations and Governance Documents ). We require all employees to
adhere to the Code in addressing the legal and ethical issues encountered in conducting their work. The Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics requires that our employees avoid conflicts of interest, comply with all laws and other
legal requirements, conduct business in an honest and ethical manner, and otherwise act with integrity and in our best
interest. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is intended to comply with Item 406 of the SEC s Regulation S-K
and the rules of NASDAQ.

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics includes procedures for reporting violations of the Code, which are
applicable to all employees. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires companies to have procedures to receive, retain
and treat complaints received regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters and to allow for
the confidential and anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing
matters.
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The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics also includes these required procedures.

Any waiver or amendment of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for designated senior officers, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, will be disclosed promptly on our Internet website.

Copies of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics appear on our website and are also available upon request by any
stockholder addressed to our Chief Financial Officer, 200 Lawrence Drive, West Chester, PA 19380.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information contained in the sections titled Executive Officers and Executive Compensation and Compensation of
Directors in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information contained in the section titled Securities Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 12.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information contained in the section titled Certain Relationships and Related Transactions in the Proxy Statement
is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 13.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information contained in the section titled Fees to Independent Public Accountants in the Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 14.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements
The financial statements as set forth under Item 8 of this report on Form 10-K are incorporated herein.

2. Financial Statement Schedules
All financial statement schedules have been omitted here because they are not applicable, not required or the

information is shown in the financial statements or related notes.

3. Exhibits
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Animas Corporation (1)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Animas Corporation (1)

10.1 Silicon Valley Bank Loan and Security Agreement dated November 4, 2002 by and among Animas
Corporation, Animas Diabetes Care, LLC and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed
February 23, 2004)

10.2 Loan Modification Agreement dated November 7, 2003 by and among Animas Corporation, Animas
Diabetes Care, LLC and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company s
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9%*

10.10%*

10.11

10.12%*

10.13%*

10.14%*
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DESCRIPTION
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Silicon Valley Bank Loan and Security Agreement dated November 7, 2003, by and among Animas
Corporation, Animas Diabetes Care, LLC and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008
filed February 23, 2004)

Negative Pledge Agreement dated November 4, 2002, by and among Animas Corporation, Animas
Diabetes Care, LLC and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23,
2004)

Negative Pledge Agreement dated November 7, 2003, by and among Animas Corporation, Animas
Diabetes Care, LLC and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23,
2004)

Equipment Term Note dated as of November 4, 2002 from Animas Corporation to Silicon Valley
Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

1996 Incentive Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

1998 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

2004 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-113008 filed April 2, 2004)

2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-113008 filed April 2, 2004)

Agreement of Lease dated June 24, 2003 by and between Berwind Property Group, Ltd. and Animas
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Animas Corporation and Katherine
D. Crothall dated February 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Employment Agreement by and between Animas Corporation and Richard Baron dated
February 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)
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10.15

10.15(A)

10.15(B)

10.15(C)

10.15(D)

10.16

Form of Change of Control Agreement between Animas Corporation and certain executive officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A,
Registration No. 333-113008 filed April 2, 2004)

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of October 11, 2001 by and among
Animas Corporation and certain holders of Preferred Stock in Animas Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration

No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 13,

2002 by and among Animas Corporation and certain holders of Preferred Stock in Animas
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16(A) to the Company s Registration Statement
on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of

January 21, 2003 by and among Animas Corporation and certain holders of Preferred Stock in
Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16(B) to the Company s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of

November 18, 2003 by and among Animas Corporation and certain holders of Preferred Stock in
Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16(C) to the Company s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 24,
2004 by and among Animas Corporation and certain holders of Preferred Stock in Animas
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16(D) to the Company s Registration Statement
on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-113008 filed April 2, 2004)

Investor Rights Agreement dated as of January 28, 2000, by and among Animas Corporation and
certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the
Company s
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER

10.16(A)

10.16(B)

10.16(C)

10.16(D)

10.16(E)

10.16(F)

10.17

10.17(A)

10.17(B)

DESCRIPTION
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

First Amendment to Investor Rights Agreement dated as of January 22, 2001, by and among
Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17(A) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration

No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Second Amendment to Investor Rights Agreement dated as of October 11, 2001, by and among
Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17(B) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration

No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Third Amendment to Investor Rights Agreement dated as of May 13, 2002, by and among Animas
Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17(C) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration

No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Fourth Amendment to Investor Rights Agreement dated as of January 21, 2003, by and among
Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17(D) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration

No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Fifth Amendment to Investor Rights Agreement dated as of November 18, 2003, by and among
Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17(E) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration

No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Sixth Amendment to Investor Rights Agreement dated as of March 24, 2004 by and among Animas
Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.17(F) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration

No. 333-113008 filed April 2, 2004)

Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 11, 2001, by and among
Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008
filed February 23, 2004)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of May 13, 2002, by
and among Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.18(A) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration
No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of January 21,
2003, by and among Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18(B) to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)
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10.17(C)

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21%*

10.22%

10.23%*

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of March 24, 2004
by and among Animas Corporation and certain stockholders of Animas Corporation (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.18(C) to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A,
Registration No. 333-113008 filed April 2, 2004)

Second Loan Modification to Silicon Valley Bank Loan and Security Agreement dated November 4,
2002, by and among Animas Corporation, Animas Diabetes Care, LLC and Silicon Valley Bank
dated February 19, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

First Loan Modification to Silicon Valley Bank Loan and Security Agreement dated November 7,
2003, by and among Animas Corporation, Animas Diabetes Care, LLC and Silicon Valley Bank
dated February 19, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-113008 filed February 23, 2004)

Silicon Valley Bank Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit dated August 21, 2003, for the benefit of
Lawrence Road Investors, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-113008 filed April 2, 2004)

2004 Equity Incentive Plan Incentive Stock Option Grant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004)

2004 Equity Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2004)

Summary of Director and Executive Compensation (1)
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER
10.24
10.25

10.26

21

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

DESCRIPTION
License, Joint Development and Manufacturing Assistance Agreement (2)

Micro-Needle License, Joint Development and Manufacturing Assistance Agreement (2)

Asset Purchase Agreement dated December 16, 2004 by and between Cygnus, Inc., Animas
Corporation and Animas Technologies LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 24, 2005)

Subsidiaries of Animas Corporation (1)

Consent of KPMG LLP (1)

Certification by President and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (1)

Certification by Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (1)

Certification Furnished Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)

(1)  Filed herewith

(2)  Portions of this Exhibit were omitted and filed separately with the Secretary of the SEC pursuant to a request
for confidential treatment that has been filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

* Management contracts and compensatory plans and arrangements required to be filed as exhibits pursuant to
Item 15(c) of this report.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DATE: March 31, 2005

/s/ Richard Baron

Richard Baron
Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Animas Corporation
(Registrant)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed on March 31, 2005
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated.

Signature and Title
/s/ Katherine D. Crothall
Katherine D. Crothall
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
/s/ Edward Cahill
Edward Cahill
Director
/s/ Graeme Crothall
Graeme Crothall
Director
/s/ William A. Graham IV

William A. Graham IV
Director

Signature and Title
/s/ David Joseph
David Joseph
Director
/s/ John J. McDonough
John J. McDonough
Director
/s/ Thomas Morse
Thomas Morse
Director
/s/ A. Peter Parsons
A. Peter Parsons
Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Animas Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Animas Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Animas Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 25, 2005
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ANIMAS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,702 in
2004 and $1,285 in 2003
Inventories
Cost associated with deferred revenue
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Deposits and other assets

Restricted cash

Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders Equity
Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Total current liabilities

Other liabilities

Long-term debt

Total liabilities

Table of Contents

December
31, 2004

December 31,
2003

(in thousands, except share data)

$ 30,867

22,382
10,924

1,378

65,551
6,780

3,654

75,985

398
4,430
4,077
8,905

1,820

254

10,979

384
13,178
3,335
1,025
575
18,497
3,899
297

550

23,243

2,657

462

2,752
8,462

14,333
1,140

467

15,940
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Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Stockholders equity:

Series A, B, and C Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 10,000,000

shares in 2004 and 8,353,200 shares in 2003; none issued and outstanding

in 2004 and 7,097,724 in 2003 71
Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares in 2004 and

24,000,000 shares in 2003; issued and outstanding 20,022,765 shares in

2004 and 3,987,282 in 2003 200 40
Additional paid-in capital 164,784 90,544
Deferred compensation (142) (178)
Accumulated deficit (99,836) (83,174)
Total stockholders equity 65,006 7,303
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 75,985 $ 23,243

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ANIMAS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except share and per share
data)
Net revenues $ 67,926 $ 34,120 $ 23,598
Operating expenses:
Cost of products sold 26,986 16,759 12,384
Research and development expenses 6,301 5,173 3,921
Selling, general and administrative expenses 36,793 29,800 26,741
Purchased in-process research and development 14,521
Total operating expenses 84,601 51,732 43,046
Loss from operations (16,675) (17,612) (19,448)
Interest income 361 22 158
Interest expense (348) (214) (84)
Net loss (16,662) (17,804) (19,374)
Deemed dividend - beneficial conversion feature of preferred
stock (Note 9) (7,878)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (16,662) $ (25,682) $ (19,374
Basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders
per share $ (123) $ 6.64) $ (5.02)
Weighted average shares - basic and diluted 13,521,644 3,869,844 3,861,614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, January 1,
2002

Sale of preferred
stock at $12.50 per
share, net of offering
costs

Issuance of stock
options for services
rendered

Exercise of stock
options to purchase
common stock
Deferred
compensation
associated with stock
grants

Amortization of
deferred
compensation

Net loss

Balance,
December 31, 2002

Sale of preferred
stock at $12.50 per
share, net of offering
costs

Issuance of stock
options for services
rendered

Exercise of stock
options to purchase
common stock
Deferred
compensation

Table of Contents

ANIMAS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Additional Total
Preferred stock Common stock paid-in  Deferred Accumulatedtockholders
Shares Amount Shares Amount capital compensation deficit equity
(in thousands, except share and per share
data)
5,167,555 $ 52 3,856,649 $ 39 $ 57,373 $ $ (38,118) $ 19,346
581,545 6 7,229 7,235
184 184
9,333 44 44
80 (80)
27 27

(19,374) (19,374)

5,749,100 58 3,865,982 39 64,910 (53) (57,492) 7,462
1,348,624 13 16,686 16,699
591 591
121,300 1 314 315
165 (165)
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associated with stock
grants

Amortization of
deferred
compensation

Net loss

Deemed dividend
(Note 9)

Balance,
December 31, 2003 7,097,724 71
Exercise of stock
warrants to purchase
preferred stock
Conversion of
preferred stock into
common stock

Sale of common
stock at $15.00 per
share, net of offering
costs

Cashless exchange of
warrants

Exercise of stock
options and warrants
to purchase common
stock

Issuance of stock as
consideration for
acquisition

Deferred
compensation
associated with stock
grants

Amortization of
deferred
compensation

Net loss

55,084 1

(7,152,808) (72)

Balance,
December 31, 2004 $

3,987,282

9,522,604

4,887,500

637,378

581,001

400,000

7,000

40

95

49

40
(25,682)
7,878

90,544 (178) (83,174)

406

(23)

65,696

(6)

2,289

5,776

102 (76)

112
(16,662)

40
(25,682)
7,878

7,303

407

65,745

2,295

5,780

26

112
(16,662)

20,022,765 $ 200 $ 164,784 § (142) $ (99,836) $ 65,006

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ANIMAS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Non-cash compensation and interest expense
Write-off of in-process research and development
Bad debt expense

Other

Changes in net assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories

Cost associated with deferred revenue

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deposits and other assets

Restricted cash

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Payment for acquisition

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from lines of credit

Repayments on lines of credit

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of offering costs
Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayments on long-term debt

Proceeds from sale of preferred stock

Table of Contents

Years Ended December 31,

2004

$(16,662)

2,163
138
14,521
1,256
12

(10,460)
(7,589)
1,025
(803)
143
550
1,678
(3,705)

(17,733)

4,779)
(12,241)

(17,020)

12,102
(14,759)
68,040

(554)
407

$

2003
(in
thousands)

(17,804)

1,679
631

889

(7,001)
(611)
(1,025)
(222)
(188)
(550)
110
5,926

(18,166)

(1,524)

(1,524)

3,885
(1,478)
315

(481)
16,699

2002

$(19,374)
1,180
211

316
(20)

(4,573)
(1,537)

(46)
(26)

1,456
752

(21,661)

(1,984)

(1,984)

573

(323)
44
1,000

(357)
7,235
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Net cash provided by financing activities 65,236 18,940 8,172
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 30,483 (750) (15,473)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 384 1,134 16,607
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 30,867 $ 384 $ 1,134

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ANIMAS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share data)

(1) Organization and Description of Business

Animas Corporation (the Company ) manufactures and distributes insulin pumps as well as ancillary pump supplies
required for the use of the pump. The Company, a Delaware corporation founded in 1996, is located in West Chester,
Pennsylvania. The Company received clearance from the Food and Drug Administration (the FDA ) for its first insulin
pump in February 2000 and began shipping this product in July 2000. The Company received clearance for its
third-generation pump, the IR 1200, in October 2003 and began shipping it in April 2004. In December 2004, the
Company received clearance for its newest pump, the IR 1250, and began shipping it in February 2005. In the United
States, the Company generally markets its products through both a direct sales force and distributors. All of the
Company s operations are located in the United States. Although most of the Company s sales of product to patients
occur in the United States, it has contracted with independent distributors to sell products in Australia, Austria,
Canada, the Czech Republic, France, Finland, Greece, Germany, Hungary, the Republic of Ireland, Israel, Italy, New
Zealand, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom. The Company is also developing an implantable glucose sensor for
people with insulin-requiring diabetes.

In May 2004, the Company completed its initial public offering ( IPO ) in which it sold 4,887,500 shares of its common
stock at $15.00 per share. In connection with the offering, the Company paid $5,132 in underwriting discounts and
commissions and incurred $2,435 in other expenses. Net proceeds to the Company were $65,745. As of the closing

date of the offering, all of the convertible preferred stock previously outstanding was converted into 9,522,604 shares

of common stock.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be a cash equivalent. Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds
and various deposit accounts.

Accounts Receivable Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from third
party payors (governmental and non-governmental), distributors, and patients. In estimating the collectability of our
accounts receivable, the Company analyzes historical bad debts, payor and patient concentrations, payor and patient
credit-worthiness, and current economic trends. These allowances are recorded in the period when the revenue is
recorded. Allowances are adjusted currently for any changes in estimated collections.

Accounts receivable are net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $1,702 and $1,285 at December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, respectively. Bad debt expense was $1,256, $889, and $316 for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. The related write-offs of accounts receivable were $839, $337, and $33 for these
periods, respectively.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method for all inventories. Cost for pumps includes material, labor and manufacturing overhead. Ancillary supplies
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inventory and raw materials inventory include material costs only.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets for financial reporting
purposes. The estimated useful lives used for financial reporting purposes are as follows:

Laboratory equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Manufacturing equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements 10 years

Furniture and equipment 3 to 7 years

Demo insulin infusion pumps 2 years
57

Table of Contents 81



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Table of Contents

Impairment of Long-lived Assets. The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset might not be recoverable. When such an event
occurs, management determines whether there has been impairment by comparing the anticipated undiscounted future
net cash flows to the related asset s carrying value. If an asset is considered impaired, the asset is written down to fair
value, which is determined based either on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending on the asset.

Product Warranties. The Company provides a four-year warranty on its insulin pumps. Warranty expense is recorded
in the period that product shipment occurs. The expense is based on historical experience and projected trends of
warranty claims and the estimated cost to settle the claims. At December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, accrued
product warranties totaled $1,349 and $1,734, respectively, and are classified as a current liability in accrued expenses
($350 and $608, respectively) and as a long-term liability (see Note 8) in other liabilities ($999 and $1,126,
respectively) in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Given the four-year warranty period of the Company s
insulin pumps, the portion of the warranty accrual classified as long-term represents the Company s estimate of costs
to settle warranty claims to be incurred in excess of one year from the balance sheet date.

A tabular reconciliation of the changes in the Company s product warranty liability is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,734 $1,775 $ 1,604
Warranty expense 2,814 820 1,160
Warranty claims settled (3,199) (861) (989)
Balance at end of period $ 1,349 $1,734 $1,775

Comprehensive Loss. Comprehensive loss represents all changes in stockholders equity except those resulting from
investments or contributions by stockholders. No separate statement of comprehensive loss has been presented
because comprehensive loss was equal to net loss in each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues are generated primarily from the sale of insulin pumps and ancillary supplies.
Customers do not have any right of return or any right to cancel or terminate the sale once the pumps or ancillary
supplies are shipped. Pump and ancillary supplies net revenues are recognized upon shipment in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104 ( SAB 104 ). In accordance with EITF 00-21, Accounting for Revenue Arrangements
with Multiple Deliverables, ( EITF 00-21 ) in instances where the Company provides pump operation training, the
Company defers the fair value of the training until it has been delivered. The Company bases the fair value of the
training on the historical amount the Company has paid to independent service providers for training patients on the
operation of the pump. Though the insulin pump has standalone value, there is no objective evidence as to the pump s
fair value since the Company is reimbursed the same amount with or without training. As a result, the residual method
under EITF 00-21 is utilized. The Company defers revenues associated with training until it has been delivered.

During the year ended December 31, 2004 approximately 82%, of the Company s products were sold directly to
patients. The Company bills these patients directly or bills their healthcare payors. Levels of reimbursements from
third party payors vary depending upon the specific benefits provided under each patient s coverage. At the time of
sale, the Company records revenue net of a contractual allowance, which represents the difference between the
established billing rate and third party payor payments.
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As noted above, in October 2003, the Company received FDA clearance for its IR 1200 pump. The Company began
shipping the IR 1200 in April 2004. During the period of November 1, 2003 to March 31, 2004, the Company initiated
an upgrade program in which the Company offered to each new patient purchasing an IR 1000 pump the option to
upgrade to the IR 1200 pump at no additional charge. As required by SAB 104, the Company deferred the recognition
of net revenues on all pump shipments with an upgrade obligation. As of September 30, 2004, the Company had
completed the upgrade program. As a result of this program, the Company s net revenues for the second and third
quarter of 2004 were increased by the recognition of revenues deferred from previous quarters, as the Company
shipped upgraded pumps or patients declined the upgrade.

Revenues from products sold directly to domestic and international distributors are recognized upon shipment, and are
approximately 18% of the Company s products during the year ended December 31, 2004. Distributors have no right
of return. The Company has no post-shipment obligations to its distributors.

Shipping and Handling of Products. Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling of products are included
in net revenues.
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Costs incurred related to shipping and handling of products are included in cost of products sold.
Research and Development. Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred.

Adbvertising Costs. Advertising costs, included in selling, general and administrative expenses, are charged to expense
as incurred. Advertising expenses in 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $81, $98, and $111, respectively.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for under the asset-and-liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be
realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the balance sheet date using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period such tax rate changes are
enacted.

Stock-Based Compensation. In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and
Disclosure. This standard amends the transition and disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation. As permitted by SFAS No. 148, the Company applies the intrinsic value-based method of
accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board ( APB ) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations to account for its stock options. Under this method, compensation expense is
recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price. As
allowed by SFAS No. 148, the Company has elected to continue to apply the intrinsic value-based method of

accounting described above, and has adopted only the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148.

Had the Company determined compensation cost for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003

and 2002, based on the fair value method, at the grant date under SFAS No. 148, the Company s net loss and net loss
per share would have been reported as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net loss attributable to common stockholders, as reported $(16,662) $(25,682) $(19,374)
Add Non-cash employee compensation, as reported 33 501 159
Deduct Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value-based method (907) (385) (743)
Pro forma net loss attributable to common stockholders $(17,536) $(25,566) $(19,958)
Loss attributable to common stockholders per share:
Basic and Diluted, as reported $ 123 $ 664 $ (5.02)
Basic and Diluted, pro forma $ 1300 $ 6.61) $ (5.17)

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002
were $7.20, $1.69, and $1.88, respectively. The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the
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Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The weighted average assumptions used are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Risk-free interest rate 3.46% 2.97% 4.31%
Expected life (in years) 4 5 5
Dividend yield
Expected volatility 54.20% % %

Net Loss per Common Share. Net loss per common share is computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings
per Share. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 128, basic net loss per share ( Basic EPS ) is computed by dividing net
loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
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Diluted net loss per common share ( Diluted EPS ) is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of
common shares and common equivalent shares then outstanding. Common equivalent shares consist of the

incremental common shares issuable upon the conversion of preferred stock, shares issuable upon the exercise of

stock options and warrants and the conversion of preferred stock upon the exercise of warrants. For the three years

ended December 31, 2004, Diluted EPS is identical to Basic EPS as the Company is in a net loss position and the
common equivalent shares are considered anti-dilutive. As of December 31, 2004, common equivalents consisted of
2,504,492 common stock options and 148,140 common warrants (see Note 9).

Concentration of Credit Risks. The Company s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. Substantially all of our cash and cash
equivalents are maintained at major financial institutions in the United States. Deposits at these institutions may
exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits. The Company has not experienced any losses on deposits
of cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from third party payors (governmental and non-governmental),
distributors, and patients. The Company routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers and, generally
requires no collateral from its customers. Credit losses have been minimal to date. No single customer accounted for
10% or more of the Company s 2004, 2003 or 2002 net revenues. No customer accounted for more than 10% of total
accounts receivable at December 31, 2004 or 2003.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Some of the more significant estimates include the
allowance for doubtful accounts, contractual allowances, inventory obsolescence, and the warranty accrual. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements. In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151 ( SFAS 151 ), Inventory
Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4. SFAS 151 amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,

Inventory Pricing, to clarify that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted
material should be recognized as current period charges and requires the allocation of fixed production overheads to
inventory based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred
during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for inventory costs incurred during
fiscal years beginning after the date SFAS 151 was issued. SFAS 151 should be applied prospectively. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this standard to have a material impact on the consolidated financial position, results
of operations and cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R) ( SFAS 123 (R) , Share-Based Payment. SFAS 123(R) revises
SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and its related implementation guidance. SFAS 123(R) will require compensation costs related

to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial statements (with limited exceptions). The

amount of compensation cost will be measured based on the grant-date fair value of the equity or liability instruments
issued. Compensation cost will be recognized over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for the
award. This statement is effective as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after

June 15, 2005. The full impact of adoption of SFAS 123(R) cannot be predicted at this time because it will depend on
levels of share-based payments granted in the future. However, had the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior

periods, the impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described in the disclosure
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of pro forma net loss and loss per share in Note 2 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements. SFAS 123(R)
also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing
cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as required under current literature. This requirement will reduce net
operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after adoption. The Company is unable to
estimate what those amounts will be in the future because they depend on, among other things, when employees
exercise stock options.
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(3) Inventories

Inventories consist of the following as of:

December 31,
2004 2003
Raw materials $ 2,225 $ 1,064
Work in process 5,367 423
Finished goods 3,914 1,848
Less reserve for excess and obsolete inventory (582)

$10,924 $3,335

(4) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following as of:

December 31,

2004 2003
Laboratory equipment $ 332 $ 281
Computer equipment 2,944 2,272
Manufacturing equipment 3,724 2,750
Leasehold improvements 1,661 727
Furniture and equipment 1,510 1,071
Demo insulin infusion pumps 1,024
Construction in progress 993 775

12,188 7,876
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,408) (3,977)

$ 6,780 $ 3,899

Depreciation and amortization expense was $2,163, $1,679 and $1,180 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Management has conducted a review of its accounting for the lease of its corporate headquarters, which was entered
into in June 2003. The Company did not account for a tenant improvement allowance provided by the landlord on the
consolidated balance sheets or on the consolidated statements of cash flows. Management determined that the
appropriate accounting under generally accepted accounting principles requires that the allowance be recorded as a
deferred rent liability on the consolidated balance sheets and as a component of operating activities on the
consolidated cash flow statements. As a result, the Company recorded a leasehold improvement of approximately
$909,000 relating to a tenant allowance and a corresponding deferred rent liability at December 31, 2004. The
deferred rent liability will be amortized over the lease term as a reduction of rent expense and the addition to leasehold
improvements will be amortized over the useful life of the improvement. The cash flow statement for the year ended
December 31, 2004 has also been corrected to reflect the tenant allowance as both a cash flow from operations and an
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investing activity. The Company has corrected the lease accounting as of December 31, 2004 as management has
determined that the amounts are immaterial to financial statements of prior periods.

(5) Deposits and Other Assets

Deposits and other assets consist of the following at:

December 31,
2004 2003
Asset associated with acquired technology (see Note 11) $ 3,500 $
Other assets 154 297

$ 3,654 $ 297
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(6) Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following at:

December 31,
2004 2003
Salaries and related expenses $1,971 $ 1,963
Other accrued expenses 1,184 712
Deferred revenue 572 5,179
Current portion of warranty accrual (Note 2) 350 608

$4,077 $ 8,462

(7) Lines of Credit and Long-term Debt

The Company had a $250 line of credit facility with a bank that bore interest at 1.50% above the bank s prime rate.
The line of credit expired in December 2004. At December 31, 2003, $250 was outstanding. An officer of the
Company personally guaranteed the $250 line of credit in 2003.

During 2002, the Company entered into a $3,000 line of credit with a second bank. The line bore interest at 1.00%
above the bank s prime rate. In November 2003, the Company replaced the line of credit with a $6,000 line of credit
with the same bank. The line of credit availability is based upon eligible accounts receivable and inventory. The line
bears interest at 1.75% above the bank s prime rate (7.00% at December 31, 2004). The line of credit expires on
May 5, 2005. Borrowings are secured by a pledge of substantially all of the Company s assets. No amounts were
outstanding at December 31, 2004 and $2,407 was outstanding at December 31, 2003. The line of credit is used as
security for a letter of credit (see Note 10). The weighted-average interest rate was 5.75% and 5.31% during the year
ended December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively.

Long-term debt consists of the following as of:

December 31,

2004 2003
Note payable to bank due November 4, 2005, in monthly installments of $28 plus interest at
1.5% above the prime rate, secured by certain assets of the Company $ 238 $ 614
Capital lease obligations (see Note 10) 414 315
652 929
Less current portion of long-term debt (398) (462)

$ 254 $ 467

The agreement related to the $6,000 line of credit and note payable to bank contains a covenant that requires the
Company to maintain a minimum net worth throughout the term of the borrowings. The covenant was modified as a
result of the Company deferring certain revenues under SAB 104 (see Note 2). As of December 31, 2004, the
Company was in compliance with this covenant.

Table of Contents 90



Edgar Filing: Western Asset Mortgage Defined Opportunity Fund Inc. - Form N-CSRS

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2005 $ 398
2006 118
2007 80
2008 50
2009 6
$ 652
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(8) Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following at:

December 31,
2004 2003
Warranty reserve (see Note 2) $ 999 $1,126
Deferred rent 821 14

$ 1,820 $ 1,140

(9) Stockholders Equity

Preferred Stock. During the first quarter of 2000, the Company sold 1,853,200 shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock ( Series A ) at $6.25 per share, raising total proceeds of $11,077, net of offering costs. In 2004, each
share of Series A was converted into the Company s common stock, at a conversion rate of 1.333 shares of common
stock for each share of Series A.

In January and February 2001, the Company sold 1,500,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock ( Series B )
at $10.00 per share, raising total proceeds of $14,591, net of offering costs. In 2004, each share of Series B was
convertible into the Company s common stock at a conversion rate of 1.333 shares of common stock for each share of
Series B.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company sold 1,814,355 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock

( Series C ) at $12.50 per share, raising total proceeds of $22,617, net of offering costs. In addition, from January to
June 2002, the Company sold 581,545 shares of Series C at $12.50 per share, raising total proceeds of $7,235, net of
offering costs. In 2004, each share of Series C was converted into the Company s common stock at a conversion rate of
1.333 shares of common stock for each share of Series C.

From January to April 2003, the Company sold 948,624 units at a price of $12.50 per unit for gross proceeds of
$11,858. In November 2003, the Company sold 400,000 units at a price of $12.50 per unit for gross proceeds of
$5,000. Each unit consisted of one share of Series C and one 10 year warrant to purchase 0.9 shares of Series C
exercisable at $12.50 per whole share ( Series C Unit ).

For each Series C Unit closing in 2003, the proceeds were allocated to the Series C and warrants based on the relative
values of each instrument. In valuing the warrants issued from January to April, the underlying value of the common
stock was based upon the most recent sale of Series C and the fair value of the warrants issued in November was

based upon the mid-point of the estimated initial public offering filing range. Accordingly, approximately $6,795 of
the January to April 2003 proceeds was allocated to the Series C and $5,063 of the proceeds was allocated to the
warrants. Similarly, $2,815 of the November 2003 proceeds was allocated to the Series C and $2,185 was allocated to
the warrants. In addition, in accordance with EITF Issue No. 00-27, Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain
Convertible Instruments ( EITF No. 00-27 ), the issuance costs were not offset against the proceeds in calculating the
intrinsic value of the conversion option but were considered in the calculation of the amount shown on the
consolidated balance sheet. After considering the allocation of the proceeds based on the relative fair values, it was
determined that the Series C had a beneficial conversion feature ( BCF ) in accordance with EITF No. 98-5 and EITF
No. 00-27. Accordingly, a BCF adjustment of $5,063 was recorded with respect to the Series C in the January to April
closing. The value of the BCF was recorded in a manner similar to a dividend, and since the Series C had no maturity
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date and was convertible at the date of issuance, the BCF was charged to the statement of operations. Additionally, the
Company recorded a similar deemed dividend during the fourth quarter of 2003, of $2,815 for the value of the BCF
with respect to the Series C sold at the November 2003 closing. The deemed dividend on the November 2003 closing
was limited since the value of the BCF was limited to the amount of the proceeds allocated to the Series C.

The Company s Series A, B, and C automatically converted into 9,522,604 shares of common stock as a result of the
IPO in May 2004 (see Note 1).
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As part of the aforementioned Preferred Stock transactions the following purchases were made by related parties or
entities affiliated with such related parties:

Series A Series B Series C Series C
Preferred Preferred Preferred Warrants
Directors and officers 544,550 147,598 1,106,568 342,269
Affiliates of directors and officers 48,000 303,800 449,929 78,956

Stock Options. The Company currently has three stock option plans, the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan ( 2004 Plan ), the
Animas Corporation 1998 Equity Compensation Plan ( 1998 Plan ) and the Animas Corporation 1996 Incentive Stock
Plan ( 1996 Plan ). Under the 2004 Plan, options and restricted stock can be granted up to a maximum of 6,500,000
shares. As of December 31, 2004, there were 6,113,276 options available for grant under the 2004 Plan. Under the
1998 Plan, options and restricted stock can be granted up to a maximum of 2,866,667 shares. As of December 31,
2004, there were 1,977,733 options outstanding under the 1998 Plan and no additional grants will be made. Under the
1996 Plan, options, stock appreciation rights, or other stock awards, as defined, to purchase 400,000 shares of

common stock could have been granted for officers, directors, employees, and consultants. The Company granted
397,760 options under the 1996 Plan. As of December 31, 2004, there were 140,035 options outstanding under the
1996 Plan and no additional grants will be made. The options under each plan expire ten years from the date of grant
and typically vest over three to five years. The plans are administered by a committee of the board of directors that
determines the type, price, and other terms of all grants under each plan. Certain options granted to executive officers
are subject to an accelerated vesting provision (see Note 10).

Information relative to the Company s stock options is as follows:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Exercise Price Price
Options Per Share Per Share

Balance as of January 1, 2002 2,126,527 $ 0.19-9.38 $ 5.03
Granted 580,733 9.38 9.38
Exercised (9,333) 4.69 4.69
Terminated (121,067) 4.69-9.38 6.11
Balance as of December 31, 2002 2,576,860 0.19-9.38 591
Granted 342,115 9.38-15.00 11.70
Exercised (86,100) 0.21-9.38 1.74
Terminated (218,267) 4.69-9.38 6.44
Balance as of December 31, 2003 2,614,608 0.19-15.00 6.75
Granted 455,807 15.00-20.07 15.50
Exercised (488,827) 0.19-9.38 3.73
Terminated (77,096) 4.69-15.00 9.48
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Balance as of December 31, 2004 2,504,492 $ 0.75-20.07 $
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The following table summarizes information relating to the Company s stock options based upon each exercise price as
of December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Average Weighted
Remaining Average
Weighted
Contractual Average Exercise
Life Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Options (years) Price Options Price
$0.75 43,334 1.6 $ 0.75 43334 $ 0.5
$2.25 60,033 2.3 2.25 60,033 2.25
$3.75-$4.68 159,812 34 4.28 159,278 4.28
$4.69 562,550 4.3 4.69 502,533 4.69
$6.00-$7.50 279,835 6.2 7.24 184,866 7.14
$9.38 815,794 7.4 9.38 389,360 9.38
$15.00-$20.07 583,134 9.6 15.39 80,713 15.00
2,504,492 6.6 $ 8.84 1,420,117 $ 6.61

In February 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant for services to be performed. In
connection with such agreement, the Company granted 5,334 shares of common stock at $14.25 per share. The
Company recorded deferred compensation of $76 based upon the estimated IPO filing price. The Company recorded a
compensation charge of $66 in 2004. In October 2004, the Company issued 1,666 shares of common stock at $15.95
to two individuals for past services and recorded a non-cash charge of $26 in the year ended December 31, 2004.

For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company granted a total of 1,248 and 14,667 stock options,
respectively, to certain consultants. These options were granted with 10-year terms and immediate vesting. The
Company has accounted for these options in accordance with EITF 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments with
Variable Terms That Are Issued for Consideration Other than Employee Services. Under SFAS No. 148, accordingly,
the Company recorded non-cash charges of $13, $50 and $31 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The Company determined the fair value of each option using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
utilizing the same assumptions as noted in Note 1, except for expected volatility in which the Company assumed 80%
and 50%, for 2003 and 2002, respectively. Additionally, the Company granted warrants to acquire 5,000 shares of
Series C preferred stock in both the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 in connection with the line of credit.
The Company determined the fair value of each warrant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model utilizing a
risk-free interest rate of 4.30% and 4.00%, expected life of 10 years, no dividend yield and expected volatility of 80%
and 0%, for 2003 and 2002, respectively. The value of the warrants was capitalized as debt issuance costs and is
amortized into interest expense over the term of the line on a straight-line basis. The Company recorded non-cash
charges of $80 and $21 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Since the Company s inception, the Company has granted to its employees options to purchase common stock at
exercise prices equal to or exceeding the selling price of preferred stock. Accordingly, through September 30, 2003,
no compensation expense was recorded in connection with options granted to employees. In the fourth quarter of
2003, the Company granted 35,333 options to purchase common stock at the market price of the stock the date the
options were issued. The Company recorded deferred compensation of $165 based upon the midpoint of the estimated
IPO filing range. In addition, in 2003 and 2002, the Company extended the option exercise period of terminated
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employees as part of a severance arrangement. The Company recorded a compensation charge of $33, $501 and $159

in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, which represents the difference between the fair value of the common stock and
the exercise price on the date the option exercise period was extended. The fair value of the common stock was equal

to the Company s fair value of preferred stock.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. In May 2004, the Board of Directors adopted the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase

Plan ( 2004 ESPP ), under which eligible employees are permitted to purchase up to an aggregate of 500,000 shares of
common stock at a discount through payroll deductions. The 2004 ESPP contains six month purchase periods. The
purchase price per share will be 85% of the lower of (i) the fair market value per share of common stock on the start
date of the purchase period or (ii) the fair market value per share of common stock on the purchase date. The initial
offering period commenced on August 1, 2004 and ended on December 31, 2004. The Company issued 12,237 shares
of common stock in 2005 under the ESPP for this initial offering period.
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The weighted average fair value for shares purchased through the employee stock purchase plan during the year ended

December 31, 2004 was $3.85. The fair value of each share is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The assumptions used for the year ended December 31, 2004 are as follows:

Risk-free interest rate 1.78%
Expected life (in years) 0.42
Dividend yield

Expected volatility 39.24%

Warrants. The Company had the following warrants outstanding as of:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Number Exercise Exercise
of Price Number Price
of
Type Dates of Expiration Warrants Range Warrants Range
Series C 1,223,762  $ 12.50
September 2005 to
Common October 2013 148,140 $ 0.19 $9.38 317,393 $ 0.19-$9.38

In February 2004, warrants to acquire 11,764 shares of Series C preferred stock were exercised and included in the
shares automatically converted into common stock as a result of the IPO in May 2004. In May 2004, warrants to
acquire 32,490 shares of Series C preferred stock were exercised and included in the shares automatically converted
into common stock as a result of the IPO in May 2004. In May 2004, as a result of the IPO, warrants to acquire
1,174,508 shares of Series C preferred stock were automatically exercised on a cashless basis and converted into
587,254 shares of common stock based on a conversion rate of 1.333 shares of common stock for each share of Series
C. The remaining warrants to acquire 5,000 shares of Series C preferred stock were converted into warrants to acquire
6,666 shares of common stock.

Of the common stock warrants, as a result of the IPO, 72,914 warrants were automatically exercised on a cashless
basis and converted into 50,124 shares of common stock. Additionally, warrants to acquire 96,339 shares of common
stock were exercised into 92,174 shares of common stock during the year ended December 31, 2004. A portion of
these were exercised on a cashless basis.

(10) Commitments and Contingencies

Licensing Agreement. In December 1996, the Company entered into an exclusive licensing agreement ( Licensing
Agreement ) with a university to acquire the proprietary rights to manufacture and distribute products developed from
certain university patents relating to implantable sensors. The Licensing Agreement was terminated in 2004.

Leases. In April 2004, the Company moved its administrative offices and manufacturing and distribution facilities
from Frazer, Pennsylvania to West Chester, Pennsylvania. The new operating lease has a ten-year term with two
five-year renewal options. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had a $550 letter of credit for a security deposit in
relation to the lease.

The Company has also entered into various capital leases to acquire equipment. The capital leases have remaining
terms of 1 to 52 months. The implicit lease interest rates range from approximately 4.0% to 20.0%. At December 31,
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2004 and 2003, assets acquired under capital leases at a cost of $1,559 and $1,290, less accumulated amortization of
$1,137 and $915, respectively, are included in property and equipment in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.
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Future minimum payments under the operating and capital leases as of December 31, 2004, as adjusted for the
amendment to the lease as noted above, are as follows:

Operating Capital

(Note 7)
2005 $ 1,146 $ 201
2006 1,169 142
2007 1,195 92
2008 1,226 54
2009 1,257 7
Subsequent to 2009 5,680
Total minimum lease payments $ 11,673 496
Less amount representing interest (82)
Present value of minimum capital lease payments 414
Less current portion (160)

$ 254

Rent expense was $1,156, $669 and $630 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Purchase Agreements. In August 2003, the Company entered into a three year agreement with one of its suppliers, as
amended in 2004 and 2005. Minimum commitments under this agreement are $7,700, $9,700, $10,700, $11,200 and
$11,798 for 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively.

Employment and Change in Control Agreements. In February 2004, the Company entered into an amended
employment agreement with its President and Chief Executive Officer. This employment agreement had an original
expiration date of January 1, 2005 but was subject to annual one year renewals in the event that neither party notified
the other party in writing of its intention not to renew the agreement no later than September 30 of the immediately
preceding year. The current expiration date is January 1, 2006 but neither party has notified the other of its intention
not to further extend the expiration date. The agreement provides in the event of certain terminations, as defined, all
unvested stock options, restricted stock, or other awards will fully vest. Further, in the event of a change of control,
vesting on 24 months of unvested shares will accelerate.

In May 2004, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Financial Officer which will expire
December 31, 2006. The agreement provides for an annual salary plus incentives. In the event of termination,
12 months of unvested stock options will immediately fully vest.

The Company has also entered into agreements with each of its executive officers other than the President and Chief
Executive Officer that contain provisions that will be triggered in the event of a change of control. Upon a change of
control, such executive officers will receive accelerated vesting on 24-months of their then-unvested shares. In the
event that such an executive officer s employment with the Company is terminated for certain reasons during the
period commencing 30 days before or one-year after the date of a change of control, such executive officer will
receive a lump sum payment equal to one year of his or her then-current base salary. In addition, in the event that such
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an executive officer remains employed from the consummation of a change of control through the one-year
anniversary of such change of control, such executive officer will receive a lump sum payment equal to one year of
his or her then-current base salary. These agreements terminate if a change of control does not occur on or before
December 31, 2006.

401(k) Plan. The Company maintains a 401(k) Plan for its employees. Employee contributions are voluntary. The
Company may match employee contributions in amounts to be determined at the Company s sole discretion. No
matching contributions have been made by the Company during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

(11) License and Development Agreements

In October 2004, the Company entered into license and development agreements with Debiotech, SA for certain
technology and intellectual property. The Company acquired the exclusive worldwide license to make, use, and sell
products utilizing the intellectual property portfolio owned by Debiotech, SA relating to micro-pumps and
micro-needles for use related to insulin administration and in-vivo glucose sensing. The Company paid $12,000 in
cash, issued 400,000 restricted shares of the Company s common stock at $14.45 per share and incurred transaction
costs of $241. Additionally, upon the receipt of the requisite deliverables for 510(k) approval from the FDA for the
micro-pump, providing receipt of such deliverables occurs prior to certain dates, the Company agreed to pay (i) a
license fee up to $2,000 and (ii) royalties on sales of products resulting from this agreement.
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Upon the achievement of certain sale milestones for the micro-needle, the Company agreed to pay (i) a license fee up
to $2,500 and (ii) royalties on sales of products resulting from this agreement.

Of the total purchase price, $14,521 was charged to expense as purchased in-process research and development and
$3,500 was recorded as a non-current asset. The $14,521 was immediately charged to expense as the technology
acquired will be used to develop products that have not been approved for sale by regulatory authorities, and the
in-process projects to which the patents apply had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative
future uses. The amount capitalized, upon project success, will be evaluated and will either be charged to expense
ratably over the life of the technology or will be charged to expense as in-process research and development. If the
project is not successful then the full amount of the $3,500 fee will be refunded to the Company.

(12) Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $76,466 of net operating loss carryforwards for federal
income tax purposes. These carryforwards expire between 2017 and 2024, if not utilized. In addition, the Company
had state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $45,006 in various states. Some of the state net operating
losses are subject to annual limitations and expire between 2007 and 2024. At December 31, 2004, the Company has
approximately $1,110 of federal research and development tax credit carryforwards, which expire between 2012 and
2024. In addition, the Company has $77 in Pennsylvania research and development tax credit carryforwards, which
expire between 2017 and 2024. As of December 31, 2004, our federal net operating loss carryforwards include $1,192
related to stock-based compensation, which will be recorded as additional paid-in capital upon the recognition of the
tax benefit associated with the Company s net operating loss carryforwards.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 (the Act ) provides for a limitation on the annual use of net operating loss and research
and development tax credit carryforwards following certain ownership changes (as defined by the Act) that could
significantly limit the Company s ability to utilize these carryforwards. The Company may have experienced various
ownership changes, as defined by the Act, as a result of past financings and the initial public offering. Accordingly,

the Company s ability to utilize the aforementioned carryforwards may be limited. Additionally, U.S. tax laws limit the
time during which these carryforwards may be applied against future taxes; therefore the Company may not be able to
take full advantage of these carryforwards for federal income tax purposes.

The components of the net deferred tax assets as of:

December 31,

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 27,603 $ 23,978
License agreement 6,686
Tax credit carryforwards 1,160 831
Warranty reserve 501 704
Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation (164) 132
Deferred revenue 212 1,686
Other 1,515 796
Total deferred tax assets 37,513 28,127
Less valuation allowance (37,513) (28,127)
Net deferred tax asset $ $
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences
representing net future deductible amounts become deductible. Due to the Company s history of losses, the deferred
tax assets are fully offset by a valuation allowance at December 31, 2004 and 2003. The valuation allowance in 2004
and 2003 increased by $9,386 and $5,139, respectively, related primarily to additional net operating losses and
capitalized research and development costs incurred by the Company.
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The income tax benefit differed from the benefit computed at the U.S. statutory tax rate as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Federal statutory rate (34.0)% (34.0)% (34.0)%
State, net of federal benefit “4.1) 4.2 4.3)
Provision adjustment (16.9)
Deemed dividend 104
Other (1.3) (0.6) 0.5
Change in deferred tax valuation allowance 56.3 20.0 37.8

% % %

(13) Related Party Transactions

One of the Company s directors is the majority owner of an insurance broker. The Company paid the insurance broker
commissions of $497, $232, and $84 in 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively, for the sale of insurance to the Company.

One of the Company s directors is a partner in the law firm that represented the Company in a lawsuit initiated against
a former employee in 2003. The Company incurred fees of $19 and $23 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(14) Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, the Company paid interest of $348, $215, and $83,
respectively, and the Company also incurred $277, $122, and $190, respectively of capital lease obligations. In
October 2004, the Company issued 400,000 restricted shares of its common stock at $14.45 as part of the purchase
price for the Debiotech, SA transaction. These non-cash transactions are not reflected in the accompanying statement
of cash flows.

(15) Business Segment

A single management team reporting to the President and Chief Executive Officer comprehensively manages the
business operations of the Company. The Company does not operate separate lines of business or separate business
entities with respect to any of its products. In addition, the Company does not conduct any operations outside the
United States. The Company does not prepare discrete financial statements with respect to separate product areas.
Accordingly, the Company does not have separately reportable segments as defined by SFAS No. 131, Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. International sales were less than 10% of net revenues, and
the Company has no foreign operations.

(16) Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

2004 2003
15t Qtr 20d Qtr 31 Qtr 4th Qtr 13tQtr  20dQtr 3¢ Qtr 4t Qtr
(in thousands except per share data)
Net revenues $ 4837 $20,420 $22,654 $ 20,015 $ 7,380 $ 9,205 $11,291 $ 6,244
Gross margin 1,896 13,083 13,988 11,973 3,891 4,707 6,859 1,904
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Net income (loss)
Deemed dividend

Net income (loss)
attributable to common
stockholders

Basic net income

(loss) attributable to
common stockholders per
share

Diluted net income

(loss) attributable to
common stockholders per
share

(8,084)

2,636 2,819

(14,033)  (4,470)
(4,911)

$(8,084) $ 2,636 $ 2,819 $(14,033) $(9,381)

$ (2.01)*

$ (2.01)*

$ 024 $§ 015 $

$ 014 $ 014 $

0.71) $ (2.43)

0.71) $ (2.43)

* Basic and diluted net loss per share has been revised from ($2.07).
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“4,704) (2,212
(152)

$(4,856) $ (2,212)

$ (1.25) $ (0.57)

$ (1.25) $ (0.57)

(6,418)
(2,815)

$(9,233)

$ (2.39)

$ (2.39)
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(17) Subsequent Event

On March 23, 2005, the Company completed its acquisition of certain assets of Cygnus, Inc. for $10,000 in cash. The
assets include substantially all of Cygnus intellectual property rights, fixed assets, supplier, manufacturing and license
agreements, inventory and tangible personal property. This transaction will be accounted as a purchase of assets and
in-process research and development technology as the acquired assets do not constitute a business.
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